
County Commission Courthouse
206 W. 1st Avenue

Hutchinson, KS 67501

  
1. Call to Order
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and Prayer
  
3. Welcome and Announcements by Commission Chair
 3.A Reno County 4-H Ambassadors invitation to the Reno County Fair with events

beginning July 15th and continuing through July 24th.
  
4. Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda

Please come forward to the podium, state your name and address and limit your remarks to not more than 5
minutes per item.

  
5. Determine Additions or Revisions to the Agenda
  
6. Consent Agenda
 6.A Vouchers (bills or payments owed by the county or related taxing units).
 6.B Agreement between the Kansas Department of Transportation and Reno County.

This County Special  Maintenance  Agreement  ("Agreement") upon completion of
tied projects  KA 1007-02 and KA 1007-03.  The anticipated completion date of
these projects is June 16, 2023. The Secretary will provide the County with written
notice of the Transfer Date through the issuance of D.O.T. Form No. 375
"Transferring Route  Maintenance" fourteen (14) days in advance of the Transfer
Date.

 6.C Planning Case #2023-03 - A resolution approving a request for a conditional use
permit for Lawrence Street Properties, LLC (Mark & Kendra Horst) to establish a
warehouse/office land use on a parcel of land located at the southwest corner of
Switzer Road and S. Halstead Street.

 6.D Declare Public Works' 2008 Ford F650 2T Truck and Autocrane
VIN#3FRWF65F78V688349 with 339,615 miles as of July 3, 2023, as surplus to be
auctioned on Purple Wave and authorize County Administrator Randy Partington to
sign the title once the truck is sold.

  
7. Executive Session
 7.A Executive Session for privileged legal matters (30 minutes)
  
8. Business Items

REGULAR SESSION

  

A G E N D A
Reno County Courthouse Veterans Room

206 W. 1st Avenue
Hutchinson, KS 67501

Wednesday, July 12, 2023, 9:00 AM

Randy Parks
District 1

Ron Hirst
District 2

Daniel P. Friesen
District 3

John Whitesel
District 4

Don Bogner
District 5

 



 8.A FY 2024 Funding for the Reno County Conservation District, community and
economic impact

 8.B Reno County Special Districts Budget
 8.C Presentation of 2022 Audit Report
 8.D Approval of Resolution No. 2023-15, authorizing the issuance of general obligation

bonds for the payment of a land purchase in HABIT for a joint sewer project and
approval of Resolution No. 2023-16, authorizing and directing the issuance, sale and
delivery of taxable general obligation temporary notes.

 8.E Sign the RNR Intent to Not Exceed RNR; and set a budget hearing date of August 9,
2023 for the FY24 Reno County Budget.

  
9. County Administrator Report
 9.A Monthly Department Reports
  
10. County Commission Report/Comments
  
11. Adjournment

Randy Parks
District 1

Ron Hirst
District 2

Daniel P. Friesen
District 3

John Whitesel
District 4

Don Bogner
District 5

 

https://www.renogov.org/DocumentCenter/View/11936/2022-Audit-Report-to-be-presented-to-BOCC-07122023


AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #3.A

AGENDA DATE: July 12, 2023

PRESENTED BY: Ambassadors Noah Miller and Brayden Blubaugh; and Advisors
Karolyn Kellogg Howey and Meghan Miller

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Reno County 4-H Ambassadors invitation to the Reno County Fair with events beginning July 15th and
continuing through July 24th.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The Dog Show will be held on July 15th, Cowboy Church and Horse Show on July 16th, the Fashion
Review on July 18th, and the remainder of the 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.B

AGENDA DATE: July 12, 2023

PRESENTED BY: Don Brittain, Director of Public Works

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Agreement between the Kansas Department of Transportation and Reno County. This County Special
 Maintenance  Agreement  ("Agreement") upon completion of tied projects  KA 1007-02 and KA 1007-
03.  The anticipated completion date of these projects is June 16, 2023. The Secretary will provide the
County with written notice of the Transfer Date through the issuance of D.O.T. Form No. 375
"Transferring Route  Maintenance" fourteen (14) days in advance of the Transfer Date.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
This Agreement is related to Agreement No. 217-20 State Route Transfer (Turnback). As allowed under
K.S.A.  68-169, as amended, KDOT and the County hereby set forth the maintenance responsibilities
 of each governmental  entity in  areas where the right of way of a state highway intersects with a Local
County Road within the County. The  topography  or geophysical  conditions  and the  type  of
maintenance activity  being  performed  may  require  that the  Line  of Maintenance vary for specific
maintenance  activities  such as mowing, snow removal, cleaning drainage structures and other
maintenance functions.

ALL OPTIONS:
Approve and sign.
Return to Staff for revision

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approve and sign as recommended by the Public Works Director.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
None





















































AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.C

AGENDA DATE: July 12, 2023

PRESENTED BY: Mark Vonachen - County Planner II

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Planning Case #2023-03 - A resolution approving a request for a conditional use permit for Lawrence
Street Properties, LLC (Mark & Kendra Horst) to establish a warehouse/office land use on a parcel of
land located at the southwest corner of Switzer Road and S. Halstead Street.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The Planning Commission recommended approval of this request by a 7-0 vote on May 18, 2023.
 
The County Commissioners approved of this request by a 5-0 vote on June 27, 2023.
 
This resolution journalizes the County Commissioners' decision.
 
The County Counselor has reviewed and approved of this resolution.

ALL OPTIONS:
The County Commissioners may:
 
Approve of the resolution as submitted.
 
Deny the resolution.
 
Return to staff the resolution with requested changes.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approval of the resolution.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
None









AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.D

AGENDA DATE: July 12, 2023

PRESENTED BY: Don Brittain, Public Works Director

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Declare Public Works' 2008 Ford F650 2T Truck and Autocrane VIN#3FRWF65F78V688349 with
339,615 miles as of July 3, 2023, as surplus to be auctioned on Purple Wave and authorize County
Administrator Randy Partington to sign the title once the truck is sold.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The 2008 Ford F650 2T Truck and Autocrane is 15 years old with 339,615 miles on it. Public Works' 2
Ton Trucks are replaced after 15 years or 200,000 miles. This truck was replaced with a 2024
International MV607 SBA 4x2 truck.

ALL OPTIONS:
1. Approve the Public Works' 2008 Ford F650 2T Truck and Autocrane VIN#3FRWF65F78V688349
with 339,615 miles as of July 3, 2023, as surplus to be auctioned on Purple Wave and to authorize
County Administrator Randy Partington to sign the title title once the truck is sold.
2. Deny item to be auctioned on Purple Wave.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approve the Public Works' 2008 Ford F650 2T Truck and Autocrane VIN#3FRWF65F78V688349 with
339,615 miles as of July 3, 2023, as surplus to be auctioned on Purple Wave and to authorized County
Administrator Randy Partington to sign the title once the truck is sold.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
Budgeted for 2023 per the CIP. Public Works Fund 007 Operational Equipment per Equipment Plan.



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #7.A

AGENDA DATE: July 12, 2023

PRESENTED BY:

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Executive Session for privileged legal matters (30 minutes)



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #8.A

AGENDA DATE: July 12, 2023

PRESENTED BY: Reno County Conservation District and Partners; Liz Lutz Conservation
District Manager, Andy Lyon Kansas Department of Ag Director of
Conservation, Chloe Gehring Cheney Lake Watershed Project Manager,
and USDA NRCS Representative

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
FY 2024 Funding for the Reno County Conservation District, community and economic impact

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
For nearly 80 years, the Reno County Conservation District, governed through a locally elected, volunteer board,
has shepherded diverse programs to improve farming operations and help make farms more resilient and profitable. 
Through our education efforts and cost share programs, we have helped implement conservation practices
throughout the county.  These efforts have increased property values, addressed problematic water quality concerns
and generated income for local producers as well as local contractors. We know that this productive ag land
maintains the tax base and tax revenues to Reno County. Even more, we have fostered effective partnerships that
allow us to deliver even more of these goals.

ALL OPTIONS:
Fund the Reno County Conservation District at requested level of $50,000 which is less than 1.5% of
the projected General Fund Budget and be at parity with Reno County Extension and the Reno County
Museum. Alternately, fall back to 2021 funding level of $47,500, a 5% reduction.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Continue to fully fund our organization with the knowledge that we take seriously, and make every
effort to leverage our partnerships and state and local funds to deliver our services in a fiscally
conservative manner.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
The Reno County Conservation District serves a large Ag production county.  Per the Kansas Department of
Agriculture, Reno County agriculture and ag-related sectors directly contributed $1.5 billion in output and 3,965
jobs in 2022.  The Reno County Conservation District directly supports these very ag producers in Reno County.  In
2022, we helped fund some $86K to landowners and ag producers to implement conservation practices. This
investment leveraged land or property improvements of $118K.   Through a District project, the Cheney Lake
Watershed, we provided $245K to landowners and ag producers in 2022.  Total value of the land improvements
through the Cheney Lake Watershed is $301,400.  Through a fiscal lens, the 2022 Reno County funding
contribution of $50K helped leverage State, Municipal and Industry investments of $419,400 to Reno County. 
 Admittedly, we aren’t economists, but this is a solid return on investment.
 



We have long maintained a lean operational budget to ensure we are good stewards of public dollars.   Our
Operational Budget is comprised of appropriations from the county, previously $50,000. This money effects our
matching contribution from the state, $24,700. Last year we also received miscellaneous donations totaling $300.



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 30, 2023 
 
Reno County Commission  
206 West First  
Hutchinson, KS 67501 
 
Dear Commissioners Friesen, Hirst, and Whitesel, Parks, and Bogner 
 
The Reno County Conservation District is requesting $50,000 from the General Fund for FY 2024. We 

understand that Reno County has many requests for funding and we take seriously our role as a key resource 

for conservation in our community.  Even more, the Reno County Conservation District makes every effort to 

leverage our partnerships and state and local funds to deliver our services in a fiscally conservative manner.   

 

We passed a milestone of 75 years serving Reno County in 2021.  Over these years, the Reno County 

Conservation District has shepherded community projects like Hunters for the Hungry, participated in the 

Reno County Wildfire Mitigation task force, and helped countless Reno County landowners implement 

conservation practices and educated thousands of children on the importance of conservation and the value 

of our natural resources.  Looking forward, we want to continue to serve both rural and urban residents of 

Reno County with issues affecting the conservation of our natural resources, ultimately preserving, and 

improving our environment and the community.   

   

One of the primary ways in which the Reno County Conservation District serves the community is through the 

delivery of Cost Share programs.  We are responsible for the administration of the State Division of 

Conservation Cost Share Programs: Water Resources and Non-Point Source in Reno County.  The State Cost 

Share allocation for Reno County in 2022 was $86,015.  This funding goes directly to Reno County landowners 

to implement conservation practices that will address natural resource concerns.  Over and above our 

fundamental purpose to improve soil and water quality, the end result may be improved farming profitability 

or these projects may resolve a public health concern, like septic waste entering public water supplies.   

Additionally, through the Cheney Lake Water Quality Project, a project which the District administers, we have 

even more Cost Share programs available.  In 2022, cost share through the CLWQP exceeded $141,000 in Reno 

County.  Too, I would be remiss to omit the importance of the Reno County Conservation District’s partnership 

with the USDA’s Natural Resources Conservation Service.  The District supports NRCS in the administration of 

EQIP, CRP, and CSP programs, which brought in an additional $4,501,670 in contracted payments last year.  All 

of these programs not only mean actual conservation practices on the ground, but also a real source of 

revenue in Reno County.  The value of this cost share alone totals over $4 million dollars, plus the majority of 

these conservation projects are completed by local contractors.  Truly a win–win for Reno County. 

 

Reno County 

Conservation District 

18 East 7th 

South Hutchinson, Kansas 67505 

Phone 620-669-8161 



Another vital service the Reno County Conservation District provides the community is conservation 

education.  Despite continued COVID-19 challenges, we have still been able to host outreach events in the 

field.  We anticipate that 2023, 2024 will continue to normalize.    We plan to continue with youth education 

efforts like the Reno County Water Festival, Farm2U and Ag & Conservation Days.  For adults, we do much of 

our outreach in the field, demonstrating regenerative ag practices and providing a forum for producers to 

learn from each other’s wins. We also plan to begin “Farmer to Farmer” meetings.  These educational efforts 

help encourage innovation, improve stewardship and, importantly, increase prosperity in our local economy. 

 
Additionally, the Reno County Conservation District fills a vital need by renting out equipment that is 

otherwise unavailable in Reno County.  Much of this effort supports the Conservation Reserve Program.  We 

maintain 3 Grass Drills and 1 No-Till Drill to support Reno County landowners in their soil stewardship efforts.  

We stock a variety of conservation related products such as grass seed, marking flags, and cable wire for 

electric fence, items that may not be available through other sources in the county.   Lastly, the Cheney Lake 

Watershed owns a crop roller which is available for rent in the Cheney Lake Watershed and throughout Reno 

County.    

 

In an effort to clarify our funding request, I will briefly outline how our proposed budget is structured (Annual 

Budget att.).  Our total proposed operational budget for FY 2024 is $169,000.  The bulk of our expense is 

personnel.  Personnel expense for 2024 is slated to be $121,000.   This covers the salary and benefits for the 

District Manager and a Regenerative Agriculture Specialist funded through grant funds: Travel, Equipment and 

Building, Information and Education and Administrative expense categories for FY 2024 are slated to be 

$13,000.  The Equipment and Building Maintenance category will cover utilities, mowing and minimal 

maintenance at our storage shed, where we store seed and equipment.  The Information and Education 

category covers our many outreach events as well as board development.   The budget category, Other 

Administrative Expenses, is essentially where overhead expenses show up, ie liability insurance, dues and 

membership fees and our annual audit expense.  The last category, WRAPS Personnel, covers the pass through 

expenses which are reimbursed by the Cheney Lake Water Quality Project.  As this is the same Budget Form 

that we must provide to the State of Kansas, we must include the Cheney Lake Water Quality Project pass thru 

expenses in our total operational budget.  Upon review of our Budget spreadsheet, you will see that our 

receipts are not complex.  We have proposed a $50,000 allocation from Reno County.  This is the same 

amount requested from our previous funding level. The State of Kansas may also provide matching funds up to 

$25,000 per district.  Considering the funding trend over the past several years, we anticipate our state 

allocation will be $24,700 for FY2024.  Our other basic operational expenses are covered by a long-standing 

agreement with USDA’s Natural Resources Conservation Service.  We maintain a memorandum of agreement 

that states that District employees, in addition to district duties and responsibilities, shall provide clerical 

and/or technical support, as well as certain equipment to NRCS in order to administer state and/or federal 

programs.  In return, NRCS agrees to provide technical guidance as well as office space and equipment and 

maintenance of that equipment.   

   

The Reno County Conservation District appreciates your continued support.  Board Supervisors and District 

Staff are committed to being a partner of choice for conservation in Reno County. 

 



Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding the budget or any of our conservation 

programs.  On behalf of myself and the Board of Supervisors, we look forward to discussing our organization 

with you in the near future.  

 
Best regards, 
 

 

Elizabeth Lutz 
District Manager 
Reno County Conservation District 
Ph: 620-888-2033 
Em: Elizabeth.Lutz2@ks.nacdnet.net  
 

Enclosures 
 2024 Formal Division of Conservation Budget Forms  

Budget Request 2024 
Annual Report 2022 

  
Reno County Conservation District Supervisors:  
Chad Basinger, Chairperson  
Sam Sanders, Vice-Chairperson 
Jerry Clasen, Treasurer 
Melody McCurry, Supervisor 
Connor Peirce, Supervisor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

         
 



 
               

 
 



 
 

 

    



Reno County 
Conservation 

District



Practices Completed Amount Unit(s)

Access Control 274 ac

Brush Management 432 ac

Conservation Crop Rotation (328) (Ac) 528 ac

Cover Crop 2174 ac

Fence 9769 ft

Firebreak 28163 ft

Grassland Conservation Initiative 830 ac

Herbaceous Weed Treatment 339 ac

Prescribed Burning 764 ac

Prescribed Grazing 5398 ac

Pumping Plant 14 no

Residue & Tillage Management, No Till 2366 ac

Restoration of Rare or Declining Natural 

Communities 128 ac

Upland Wildlife Habitat Management 9 ac

Water Well 14 no

Watering Facility 22 no

Windbreak/Shelterbelt Renovation 2935 ft

2022

County 
Allocation

$47,500

State 
Allocation
$24,707

Cheney Lake 
Watershed Cost 

share in 2022

$141,833

State Cost- Share

Assistance to 
landowners in 

2022

$86,015





Conservation Resources in Reno County

40’ Crop Roller
15’ Crust Buster NT Drill
3 x 12’ Grass Drills
1 x 9’ Grass Drill
Fencing supplies
Grass & Forb Seed





Education Events



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #8.B

AGENDA DATE: July 12, 2023

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Reno County Special Districts Budget

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:

Reno County has a budget document that is prepared and approved every year separate from the overall
county budget. This budget is the special districts budget. The Reno County Commissioners are the
governing body for each of the special districts independently. To simplify the adoption of the budgets,
each of the special districts listed below are included in the budget.

Fire District No. 2 (Hutchinson Fire, surrounds the city)
Fire District No. 3 (Nickerson and Highlands area)
Fire District No. 4 (Partridge, Arlington, Plevna, Pretty Prairie, Langdon area)
Fire District No. 6 (Sylvia area)
Fire District No. 7 (Turon area)
Fire District No. 8 (Yoder, Pleasantview, Habit area)
Fire District No. 9 (Haven, east side of Cheney Reservoir area)
Fire District Joint No. 1 (Reno/Kingman) (Pretty Prairie and west side of Cheney Reservoir area)
Fire District Joint No. 2 (Reno/Harvey) (Buhler area)
Sewer District No. 1 (Cedarview)
Sewer District No. 3-10 (Blue Spruce)
Sewer District No. 201 (Yoder)
Sewer District No. 202 (HABIT)
Sewer District No. 8 (Highlands)
Water District No. 8 (Highlands)
Water District No. 101 (Yoder)

Attached is the Reno County Special District’s budget summary (requested/recommended level).  The
summary shows all but four special districts will go above the RNR.  Reasons for this include low
assessment increases in various districts, along with increased costs and the build-up of their reserve
funds.  The four (4) funds/districts under the RNR are Fire District No. 8 (Pleasant View, Yoder, and
HABIT area), Fire District No 9’s Bond & Interest (Haven area), Sewer District No. 8 (The Highlands)
and Sewer District No. 8 Bond & Interest.  

 



At the last meeting, commissioners wanted to see another option for the budgets which have them all at
the RNR.  The summary of this alternative is attached for your review.  The alternative requested by the
commission, includes removing all property taxes from the sewer districts, so their budget would
automatically be under the RNR.  The amount of decrease in each utility districts' respective budget will
be increased on the users fee paid monthly.  The amount of cuts to the various fire districts are as
follows.

Fire District 2: $187,213, impacts the agreement with City of Hutchinson
Fire District 3: $25,581
Fire District 4: $43,237
Fire District 7: $6,980
Fire District 8: $30,167
Fire District Joint 1: $33,779
Fire District Joint 2: $34,732

 
Impact on Fire Districts by remaining at the RNR
Fire District 2 is run by the City of Hutchinson as part of the Hutchinson Fire Department.  Attached is
their budget request to explain their request.  Any changes to the request must be agreed to by both
Reno County's and the City of Hutchinson's governing bodies.

If changes must be made to get back to revenue neutral, we can utilize the same basic budgets that were
accepted for 2023.  We would have to move a little bit of money around to make sure the funding of the
fire administrator has enough money in the line item.

If the BOCC wants the fire districts to remain revenue neutral, they will continue to get further behind
on their capital equipment purchases.  Attached is a list of the capital project plans for the fire districts. 
We often put off large purchases, and in most cases, the fire district is able to use their vehicles long
past their expected service life.  By NFPA standards, a piece of equipment cannot be more than 25 years
old.  At the very least, our goal should be to have the equipment in NFPA compliance but we are not at
that point yet.  If we were to replace the equipment at the recommended service life, as shown, there is a
large yearly deficit.  The fire districts would need to be funded at a combined additional ~$450,000
yearly to be able to replace the major equipment at the recommended service life.

The communication and safety equipment of the fire districts have a large impact on their budgets. 
Prior to hiring a Fire Administrator, we let the districts choose when they would purchase new personal
protective equipment and 800MHZ radios.  With the new policies and procedures being developed, at a
minimum, the fire districts are required to purchase wildland and bunker gear for their firefighters every
10 years.  Personal protective equipment in the fire service has a shelf life of 10 years and we need to
ensure the safety of the volunteers.  There will be on occasion that gear gets torn or beat up and needs
replaced before it expires.  There are approximately 165 firefighters on the rural districts, to outfit one,
we average around $6,000.  The 800mhz radios need to be replaced, the radios we currently utilize
cannot be updated or serviced, we often wait several weeks to receive aftermarket batteries that are not
intrinsically safe.  We chose to do that over a period of 10 years instead of purchasing them all at the
same time.  Replacement cost of radios is currently around $5,000 for the new model.



While we do not recommend staying revenue neutral for 2024, if we are, we will prioritize firefighter
safety by purchasing personal protective equipment and radios.  The vehicle replacement schedule will
get further behind. 

For the sewer districts that have property tax, there is an attached summary that keeps all districts
at/below the RNR, but leaves the option of a property tax for sewer districts.  The reason for this is that
if the commission has any district (fire or utilities) above the RNR, there would be additional time to
discuss the impact on users.  Utility districts are meant to be user fee based, but with Reno County's
history of using the property tax, user rates will likely have to double (or more) since the property tax
covers an amount at least equal to that of most sewer district fees.

Remaining Budget Schedule

Below is a tentative budget schedule, along with deadlines from the State of Kansas, based on the
county exceeding the Revenue Neutral Rate (RNR).  Even if the RNR is not exceeded with the final
budget, it is strongly recommended going through the process in anticipation of exceeding the RNR to
protect the county. The purpose of following the process to exceed the RNR is that the rate is based on
an estimated assessed valuation that may go up or down between now and November 1, 2023.

July 20th – Last day to notify the County Clerk about Reno County's Revenue Neutral Rate
(RNR) intentions.
August 20th - September 20th: Hold RNR hearing prior to official budget hearing.  Publication of
hearing must be published in the newspaper and Online at least 10-days prior to the hearing.
August 20th - September 20th: Hold official Budget Hearing with same publication requirements
as used for the RNR hearing.  The two hearings can be on the same day.
August 20th - October 1st: Pass Resolution to exceed RNR and formally adopt 2023 budget.  
August 30th - October 1st: Certify budget and electronically submit to the County Clerk.

At today’s commission meeting, the maximum budget needs to be set.  When the commission decides
the maximum budget amounts, there is still an opportunity to cut the various budgets, but not to increase
the expenditures.  

ALL OPTIONS:
If any Special District Fund will exceed the FY24 RNR:

1. Notice to Exceed RNR needs to be signed; and
2. RNR and Budget Hearing date needs to be set, which is proposed to be September 13, 2023

 
If no Special District Fund will exceed the FY24 RNR:

1. Budget Hearing date needs to be set, which is proposed to be August 9, 2023

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Staff recommends the action that approves the notice to Exceed the RNR and review the impacts of
cuts, prior to adopting the budget.

1. Notice to Exceed RNR needs to be signed; and



2. RNR and Budget Hearing date needs to be set, which is proposed to be September 13, 2023



State of Kansas-County Special District

Reno County 2024

Special District Funds

Fire District No. 2 General 2,289,408 21.634 2,656,713 22.927 2,890,807 2,505,291 106,630,222 23.495 21.270

Fire District No. 3 General 190,684 5.603 219,710 5.595 237,555 203,416 33,569,672 6.060 5.297

Fire District No. 4 General 202,397 5.495 255,275 6.270 297,125 267,152 37,416,153 7.140 5.984

Fire District No. 6 General 76,042 9.860 95,325 13.705 133,880 103,597 7,839,688 13.214 13.214

Fire District No. 7 General 92,615 7.403 111,870 8.333 130,845 107,489 12,830,664 8.378 7.833

Fire District No. 8 General 166,321 5.703 172,910 5.441 196,645 173,154 27,859,278 6.215 5.132

Fire District No. 8 Bond & Interest 6,118 0.000 0 0.000 0 0 27,859,278

Fire District No. 9 General 174,361 4.575 203,130 5.035 265,130 228,426 34,696,992 6.583 6.742

Fire District No. 9 Bond & Interest 63,800 1.664 62,600 1.572 9,133 0 34,696,992

Fire District Jt. No. 1 Rn-Km General 153,424 6.329 169,620 6.008 197,855 175,954 25,028,725 7.030 5.680

Fire District Jt. No. 2 Rn-Hv General 164,683 5.344 202,350 5.746 224,260 194,955 28,731,948 6.785 5.576

Fire District Jt No. 2 Rn-Hv Bond & 
Interest

18,139 0.634 25,740 0.935 23,242 15,207 28,731,948 0.529 0.907

Sewer District No. 1 (Cedarview) 2,383 12.043 6,145 10.471 6,583 0 291,382  8.593

Sewer District No. 3-10 (Blue Spruce) 10,712 16.234 62,025 8.597 76,267 0 3,393,144  7.792

Sewer District No. 3-10 (Blue Spruce) 
Bond & Interest

37,625 0.000 41,875 0.000 95,702 0 3,393,144

Sewer District No. 201 (Yoder) 21,816 17.938 34,911 22.700 76,373 23,075 1,081,206 21.342 21.744

Sewer District No. 202 (HABIT) 24,933 21.927 38,872 22.071 66,071 24,536 1,203,924 20.380 21.593

Sewer District No. 8 (Highlands) 78,214 6.733 143,233 0.000 177,387 0 5,545,007

Sewer District No. 8 (Highlands) Bond & 
Interest

99,250 12.055 102,750 8.502 203,673 50,550 5,545,007 9.116 7.639

Water District No. 8 (Highlands) 37,071 0.000 63,751 0.000 576,711 0

Water District No. 101 (Yoder) 40,564 0.000 40,070 0.000 90,942 0

Non-Budgeted Funds - A 875,114

Non-Budgeted Funds - B 0

  *Tax rates are expressed in mills

**Revenue Neutral Rate as defined by KSA 79-2988

Page No. 1c

NOTICE OF HEARING TO EXCEED REVENUE NEUTRAL RATE AND BUDGET HEARING

Donna Patton

Clerk

Expenditures
Actual 

Tax Rate*
Expenditures

Current Yr Estimate 2023Prior Year Actual 2022

Revenue 
Neutral 
Rate**

Proposed Budget Year 2024

Actual Tax 
Rate*

Budget 
Authority for 
Expenditures

Amount of 
2023 Ad 
Valorem 

Tax

July 1, 2023 
Estimated 
Valuation

Proposed 
Estimated 
Tax Rate*

The Reno County Board of Commissioners, acting as the governing body of 

of the 2024 budget.  Proposed Tax Rate is subject to change dependent on the final assessed valuation.

will meet on September 13, 2023 during the regularly scheduled meeting which begins at 9:00 a.m. in the Reno County Courthouse Veterans Room,

Reno County Fire Districts, Reno County Sewer Districts, and Reno County Water Districts

206 W. 1st., Hutchinson, KS, for the purpose of hearing and answering objections of taxpayers relating to the proposed use of all funds and the amount of

ad valorem tax Revenue Neutral Rates.  Detailed budget information is available at the Reno County Clerk's office and will be available at this hearing.

BUDGET SUMMARY

Proposed Budget 2024 Expenditures and Amount of 2023 Ad Valorem Tax establish the maximum limits



State of Kansas-County Special District

Reno County 2024

Special District Funds

Fire District No. 2 General 2,289,408 21.634 2,656,713 22.927 2,653,594 2,268,078 106,630,222 21.270 21.270

Fire District No. 3 General 190,684 5.603 219,710 5.595 211,974 177,835 33,569,672 5.297 5.297

Fire District No. 4 General 202,397 5.495 255,275 6.270 253,888 223,915 37,416,153 5.984 5.984

Fire District No. 6 General 76,042 9.860 95,325 13.705 133,880 103,597 7,839,688 13.214 13.214

Fire District No. 7 General 92,615 7.403 111,870 8.333 123,865 100,509 12,830,664 7.833 7.833

Fire District No. 8 General 166,321 5.703 172,910 5.441 166,478 142,987 27,859,278 5.132 5.132

Fire District No. 8 Bond & Interest 6,118 0.000 0 0.000 0 0 27,859,278

Fire District No. 9 General 174,361 4.575 203,130 5.035 265,130 228,426 34,696,992 6.583 6.742

Fire District No. 9 Bond & Interest 63,800 1.664 62,600 1.572 9,133 0 34,696,992

Fire District Jt. No. 1 Rn-Km General 153,424 6.329 169,620 6.008 164,076 142,175 25,028,725 5.680 5.680

Fire District Jt. No. 2 Rn-Hv General 164,684 5.344 202,350 5.746 189,503 160,199 28,731,948 5.576 5.576

Fire District Jt No. 2 Rn-Hv Bond & 
Interest

18,139 0.634 25,740 0.935 23,242 15,207 28,731,948 0.529 0.907

Sewer District No. 1 (Cedarview) 2,383 12.043 6,145 10.471 6,583 0 291,382  8.593

Sewer District No. 3-10 (Blue Spruce) 10,712 16.234 62,025 8.597 76,267 0 3,393,144  7.792

Sewer District No. 3-10 (Blue Spruce) 
Bond & Interest

37,625 0.000 41,875 0.000 95,702 0 3,393,144

Sewer District No. 201 (Yoder) 21,816 17.938 34,911 22.700 76,808 0 1,081,206 21.744

Sewer District No. 202 (HABIT) 24,933 21.927 38,872 22.071 67,531 0 1,203,924 21.593

Sewer District No. 8 (Highlands) 78,214 6.733 143,233 0.000 177,387 0 5,545,007

Sewer District No. 8 (Highlands) Bond & 
Interest

99,250 12.055 102,750 8.502 203,673 0 5,545,007 7.639

Water District No. 8 (Highlands) 37,071 0.000 63,751 0.000 576,711 0

Water District No. 101 (Yoder) 40,564 0.000 40,070 0.000 90,942 0

Non-Budgeted Funds - A 875,114

Non-Budgeted Funds - B 0

  *Tax rates are expressed in mills

**Revenue Neutral Rate as defined by KSA 79-2988

Page No. 1c

July 1, 2023 
Estimated 
Valuation

Proposed 
Estimated 
Tax Rate*

Revenue 
Neutral 
Rate**

Donna Patton

Clerk

Expenditures
Actual 

Tax Rate*
Expenditures

Actual Tax 
Rate*

Budget 
Authority for 
Expenditures

Amount of 
2023 Ad 
Valorem 

Tax

BUDGET SUMMARY

Proposed Budget 2024 Expenditures and Amount of 2023 Ad Valorem Tax establish the maximum limits

of the 2024 budget.  Proposed Tax Rate is subject to change dependent on the final assessed valuation.

Prior Year Actual 2022 Current Yr Estimate 2023 Proposed Budget Year 2024

ad valorem tax Revenue Neutral Rates.  Detailed budget information is available at the Reno County Clerk's office and will be available at this hearing.

NOTICE OF HEARING TO EXCEED REVENUE NEUTRAL RATE AND BUDGET HEARING

The Reno County Board of Commissioners, acting as the governing body of 

Reno County Fire Districts, Reno County Sewer Districts, and Reno County Water Districts

will meet on August 9, 2023 during the regularly scheduled meeting which begins at 9:00 a.m. in the Reno County Courthouse Veterans Room,

206 W. 1st., Hutchinson, KS, for the purpose of hearing and answering objections of taxpayers relating to the proposed use of all funds and the amount of



State of Kansas-County Special District

Reno County 2024

Special District Funds

Fire District No. 2 General 2,289,408 21.634 2,656,713 22.927 2,653,594 2,268,078 106,630,222 21.270 21.270

Fire District No. 3 General 190,684 5.603 219,710 5.595 211,974 177,835 33,569,672 5.297 5.297

Fire District No. 4 General 202,397 5.495 255,275 6.270 253,888 223,915 37,416,153 5.984 5.984

Fire District No. 6 General 76,042 9.860 95,325 13.705 133,880 103,597 7,839,688 13.214 13.214

Fire District No. 7 General 92,615 7.403 111,870 8.333 123,865 100,509 12,830,664 7.833 7.833

Fire District No. 8 General 166,321 5.703 172,910 5.441 166,478 142,987 27,859,278 5.132 5.132

Fire District No. 8 Bond & Interest 6,118 0.000 0 0.000 0 0 27,859,278

Fire District No. 9 General 174,361 4.575 203,130 5.035 265,130 228,426 34,696,992 6.583 6.742

Fire District No. 9 Bond & Interest 63,800 1.664 62,600 1.572 9,133 0 34,696,992

Fire District Jt. No. 1 Rn-Km General 153,424 6.329 169,620 6.008 164,076 142,175 25,028,725 5.680 5.680

Fire District Jt. No. 2 Rn-Hv General 164,684 5.344 202,350 5.746 189,503 160,199 28,731,948 5.576 5.576

Fire District Jt No. 2 Rn-Hv Bond & 
Interest

18,139 0.634 25,740 0.935 23,242 15,207 28,731,948 0.529 0.907

Sewer District No. 1 (Cedarview) 2,383 12.043 6,145 10.471 6,583 0 291,382  8.593

Sewer District No. 3-10 (Blue Spruce) 10,712 16.234 62,025 8.597 76,267 0 3,393,144  7.792

Sewer District No. 3-10 (Blue Spruce) 
Bond & Interest

37,625 0.000 41,875 0.000 95,702 0 3,393,144

Sewer District No. 201 (Yoder) 21,816 17.938 34,911 22.700 76,808 23,510 1,081,206 21.744 21.744

Sewer District No. 202 (HABIT) 24,933 21.927 38,872 22.071 67,531 25,996 1,203,924 21.593 21.593

Sewer District No. 8 (Highlands) 78,214 6.733 143,233 0.000 177,387 0 5,545,007

Sewer District No. 8 (Highlands) Bond & 
Interest

99,250 12.055 102,750 8.502 195,483 42,360 5,545,007 7.639 7.639

Water District No. 8 (Highlands) 37,071 0.000 63,751 0.000 576,711 0

Water District No. 101 (Yoder) 40,564 0.000 40,070 0.000 90,942 0

Non-Budgeted Funds - A 875,114

Non-Budgeted Funds - B 0

  *Tax rates are expressed in mills

**Revenue Neutral Rate as defined by KSA 79-2988

Page No. 1c

NOTICE OF HEARING TO EXCEED REVENUE NEUTRAL RATE AND BUDGET HEARING

Donna Patton

Clerk

Expenditures
Actual 

Tax Rate*
Expenditures

Current Yr Estimate 2023Prior Year Actual 2022

Revenue 
Neutral 
Rate**

Proposed Budget Year 2024

Actual Tax 
Rate*

Budget 
Authority for 
Expenditures

Amount of 
2023 Ad 
Valorem 

Tax

July 1, 2023 
Estimated 
Valuation

Proposed 
Estimated 
Tax Rate*

The Reno County Board of Commissioners, acting as the governing body of 

of the 2024 budget.  Proposed Tax Rate is subject to change dependent on the final assessed valuation.

will meet on August 9, 2023 during the regularly scheduled meeting which begins at 9:00 a.m. in the Reno County Courthouse Veterans Room,

Reno County Fire Districts, Reno County Sewer Districts, and Reno County Water Districts

206 W. 1st., Hutchinson, KS, for the purpose of hearing and answering objections of taxpayers relating to the proposed use of all funds and the amount of

ad valorem tax Revenue Neutral Rates.  Detailed budget information is available at the Reno County Clerk's office and will be available at this hearing.

BUDGET SUMMARY

Proposed Budget 2024 Expenditures and Amount of 2023 Ad Valorem Tax establish the maximum limits



















































AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #8.C

AGENDA DATE: July 12, 2023

PRESENTED BY: Melissa Romme, partner from AdamsBrown, LLC; and Jami Benyshek,
manager from AdamsBrown, LLC with introduction by County
Administrator Randy Partington

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Presentation of 2022 Audit Report

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Presentation of the 2022 Audit Report

Reno County Primary Government Financial Statement with Independent Auditors' Report for the
year ended December 31, 2022 (with required supplementary information and with Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards "SEFA")
Governance Letter addresses the conduct of the audit, such as whether there were difficulties,
disagreements, management representations, whether there were other "findings" (This letter
describes no problems or "findings".)

 
The annual audit meets the requirements of:

Kansas Statutes such as K.S.A. 75-1122 and 75-1120a(c)
Various bond issuances and ongoing bond reporting
Various grant conditions, and federal "Uniform Guidance" as a recipient of federal awards

 
Reno County's basis of accounting is a regulatory basis in accordance with Kansas Municipal Audit and
Accounting Guide "KMAAG".  KMAAG is a basis of cash receipts and disbursements as adjusted to
show compliance with the cash basis and budget laws of the state of Kansas.
 
Reno County provides AdamsBrown, LLC a signed Management Representation letter for the 2022
audit, acknowledging Reno County responsibility for the financial statement, internal controls,
compliance with laws and regulations, etc.  The letter is to be signed by the County Administrator and
Commission Chair or Vice-Chair. (This should be done prior to or during the meeting.)

ALL OPTIONS:
Provide to AdamsBrown, LLC the signed Management Representation Letter and approve the
2022 Audit Report as presented
No alternative expected

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:

https://www.renogov.org/DocumentCenter/View/11936/2022-Audit-Report-to-be-presented-to-BOCC-07122023


Provide the signed Management Representation Letter and approve the 2022 Audit Report as presented.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
Completion of the audit meets the Kansas Statutory requirements, bond requirements, grant
requirements, and federal award requirements.  Fiscal impact cannot be quantified but is certainly
favorable.

















AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #8.D

AGENDA DATE: July 12, 2023

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Approval of Resolution No. 2023-15, authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds for the
payment of a land purchase in HABIT for a joint sewer project and approval of Resolution No. 2023-
16, authorizing and directing the issuance, sale and delivery of taxable general obligation temporary
notes.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
At the last commission meeting, the commission was presented with and discussed financing options for the
purchase of land required for the Yoder/HABIT sewer district project.  Cost for the land is $350,000.  The option
chosen by the commission was to issue temporary notes with county funds that will be repaid by the sewer districts
when financing for the project is in place. Attached are the documents required to be approved to move forward
with the temporary notes.
 
History of Sewer Districts' Project:
The sewer districts have been in the need of system enhancements/upgrades since 2018.  In 2019, Schwab Eaton
prepared a report of the sewer district options that had a cost of around $3 million.  Since that time, we have learned
of a proposed expansion of the law enforcement center that made the project to be reevaluated.  Inflationary costs
have also risen since that time.  The most recent estimate for the project is $6,133,100 that includes the $350,000
needed for the purchase of land required.  The land required is on property that we currently use for HABIT's
lagoons.  Additional lagoons are needed for both the Yoder sewer district and the expansion of the law enforcement
training center.  There will also be adequate land if more lagoons are needed in the future with possible industrial
growth.

ALL OPTIONS:
1. Adopt Resolutions 2023-15 and 2023-16, allowing for the purchase of land in HABIT for a

necessary sewer project.
2. Table the Resolutions to the next meeting on July 26, 2023

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
1. Adopt Resolutions 2023-15 and 2023-16, allowing for the purchase of land in HABIT for a

necessary sewer project.



 

60868.20109\PROJECT AUTHORIZATION 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 

07/05/2023 

 

EXCERPT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 

RENO COUNTY, KANSAS 

HELD ON JULY 12, 2023 

 

 The governing body of the County met in regular session at the usual meeting place in the County, at 

9:00 a.m., the following members being present and participating, to-wit:  

 

 

 Absent:  

 

 

 The Chairman declared that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 

 

 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

 (Other Proceedings) 

 

 Thereupon, there was presented a Resolution entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAKING OF CERTAIN SEWER 

TREATMENT IMPROVEMENTS TO SERVE SEWER DISTRICT NOS. 201 

(YODER) AND 202 (H.A.B.I.T.), RENO COUNTY, KANSAS; AND AUTHORIZING 

THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FOR THE PAYMENT OF 

A PORTION OF THE COSTS THEREOF. 

 

 Thereupon, Commissioner __________ moved that said Resolution be adopted.  The motion was 

seconded by Commissioner __________.  Said Resolution was duly read and considered, and upon being 

put, the motion for the adoption of said Resolution was carried by the vote of the governing body, the vote 

being as follows: 

 

  Yea: ____________________________________________________________ 

 

   Nay:   ____________________________________________________________ 

 

 Thereupon, the Chairman declared said Resolution duly adopted and the Resolution was then duly 

numbered Resolution No. ______ and was signed by the Commissioners and attested by the Clerk. 

 

 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

 (Other Proceedings) 

 

 On motion duly made, seconded and carried, the meeting thereupon adjourned. 



 

60868.20109\PROJECT AUTHORIZATION 

(Signature Page to Excerpt of Minutes) 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing Excerpt of Minutes is a true and correct excerpt of the proceedings 

of the governing body of Reno County, Kansas, held on the date stated therein, and that the official minutes of 

such proceedings are on file in my office. 

 

 

(SEAL)             

         Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

60868.20109\PROJECT AUTHORIZATION 

1 

 
GILMORE & BELL, P.C. 

07/05/2023 

 

 

 RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAKING OF CERTAIN SEWER 

TREATMENT IMPROVEMENTS TO SERVE SEWER DISTRICT NOS. 201 

(YODER) AND 202 (H.A.B.I.T.), RENO COUNTY, KANSAS; AND AUTHORIZING 

THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FOR THE PAYMENT OF 

A PORTION OF THE COSTS THEREOF. 

 

WHEREAS, K.S.A. 19-27a01 et seq., as amended by Charter Resolution No. XXVII of Reno 

County, Kansas (jointly, the “Act”), provides that (a) the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of Reno 

County, Kansas (the “County”) may construct, reconstruct, enlarge, extend, operate, maintain, or otherwise 

provide for one or more systems of disposal works for the purification of sewage, including disposal works, 

pumping stations, pumps or other apparatus necessary to handle and dispose of sewage; (b) the costs and 

expenses of constructing, reconstructing, enlarging or extending any such sewage treatment or disposal 

works and facilities shall be borne by the various districts then or thereafter using the same, or the County 

at-large, or both, and such costs and expenses may be paid out of the general revenue fund or by the 

issuance of general obligation bonds of the County, as the Board may determine, in the manner provided by 

law; and (c) the proportionate share of the costs of such sewer improvements not borne by the 

County-at-large, including principal and interest on general obligation bonds issued by the County, shall be 

paid from any combination of the following sources:  (i) assessments against the property within the sewer 

district in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 19-27a07, (ii) a uniform tax imposed and levied within 

the sewer district in the same manner prescribed in K.S.A. 19-27a11, (iii) charges imposed by the Board 

within the sewer district for the use of sewer improvements, or (iv) if not so paid from one of the preceding 

sources, from ad valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the 

taxable tangible property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of the County; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Sewer District Nos. 201 (Yoder) and 202 (H.A.B.I.T.), Reno County, Kansas (the 

“Districts”), are sewer districts in the County, and validly existing under the Act; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board hereby finds and determines that (a) it is necessary to make sanitary sewer 

collection and treatment system improvements serving the Districts, including land acquisition, collection, lift 

station, and lagoon improvements (the “Improvements”); (b) the costs and expenses of the Improvements 

should be borne by the Districts, and such costs and expenses should be paid by the issuance of general 

obligation bonds of the County; and (c) the costs of such Improvements, including principal and interest on 

general obligation bonds issued by the County, should be paid from charges imposed by the Board within 

the Districts for the use of the Improvements, or if not so paid, from ad valorem taxes which may be levied 

without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible property, real and personal, within the 

territorial limits of the County. 

 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 

RENO COUNTY, KANSAS: 

 



 

 

60868.20109\PROJECT AUTHORIZATION 

2 

 
SECTION 1.  Project Authorization.  Under the provisions of the Act, the Board authorizes the 

Improvements, at an estimated cost, including finance and interest costs, of $6,133,100. 

 

 SECTION 2.  Financing Authorization.  The costs and expenses of the Improvements shall be 

borne by the Districts, and such costs and expenses are authorized to be paid in part by the issuance of 

general obligation bonds of the County (the “Bonds) in an amount not exceeding $355,000.  The costs of 

such Improvements, including principal and interest on the Bonds, shall be paid from charges imposed by 

the Board within the Districts for the use of the Improvements, or if not so paid, from ad valorem taxes 

which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible property, real and 

personal, within the territorial limits of the County.  Costs of the Improvements not paid from the proceeds 

of the Bonds may be paid from other available funds of the Districts or County. 

 

 SECTION 3.  Reimbursement Authorization.  The proceeds of sale of any Bonds issued to pay 

Improvement costs may be used to reimburse expenditures made on or after the date that is 60 days before the 

date of adoption of this Resolution, pursuant to United States Treasury Regulation §1.150-2. 

 

 SECTION 4.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective from and after its adoption. 

 

 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 



 

 

60868.20109\PROJECT AUTHORIZATION 

 
(Signature Page to Resolution) 

 

 ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF RENO COUNTY, 

KANSAS ON JULY 12, 2023. 

 

 

 

(Seal)      __________________________________ 

      Daniel Friesen, Chairman 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Randy Parks, Commissioner 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Ron Hirst, Commissioner 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Don Bogner, Commissioner 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      John Whitesel, Commissioner 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

 County Clerk 



6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 

07/05/2023 

 

EXCERPT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 

RENO COUNTY, KANSAS 

HELD ON JULY 12, 2023 

 

 The governing body met in regular session at the usual meeting place in the County, at 9:00 A.M., 

the following members being present and participating, to-wit:  

 

 

 Absent:   

 

 The Chairman declared that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

(Other Proceedings) 

 

 Thereupon, there was presented a Resolution entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE ISSUANCE, SALE 

AND DELIVERY OF TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION TEMPORARY 

NOTES, SERIES 2023, OF RENO COUNTY, KANSAS; PROVIDING FOR THE 

LEVY AND COLLECTION OF AN ANNUAL TAX, IF NECESSARY, FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SAID NOTES 

AS THEY BECOME DUE; MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS AND 

AGREEMENTS TO PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT AND SECURITY 

THEREOF; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND 

ACTIONS CONNECTED THEREWITH. 

 

 Thereupon, Commissioner __________ moved that the Resolution be adopted.  The motion was 

seconded by Commissioner __________.  The Resolution was duly read and considered, and upon being 

put, the motion for the adoption of the Resolution was carried by the vote of the governing body as follows: 

 

 Yea: ____________________________________________________________ 

 

 Nay: ____________________________________________________________ 

 

 Thereupon, the Chairman declared the Resolution duly adopted and the Resolution was then duly 

numbered Resolution No. ____, and was signed by the Commissioners and attested by the Clerk. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

(Other Proceedings) 

 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

(Signature Page to Excerpt of Minutes) 

 On motion duly made, seconded and carried, the meeting thereupon adjourned. 

 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing Excerpt of Minutes is a true and correct excerpt of the proceedings 

of the governing body of Reno County, Kansas, held on the date stated therein, and that the official minutes 

of such proceedings are on file in my office. 

 

 

 

(SEAL)              

          Clerk 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 
 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 

07/05/2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

 

 

OF 

 

 

RENO COUNTY, KANSAS 

 

 

ADOPTED 

 

 

JULY 12, 2023 

 

 

 

 

TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION TEMPORARY NOTES 

SERIES 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

i 

RESOLUTION 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS 

 Definitions of Words and Terms. .............................................................................. 2 

ARTICLE II AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE NOTES 

 Authorization of the Notes. ....................................................................................... 7 
 Description of the Notes. .......................................................................................... 7 
 Designation of Paying Agent and Note Registrar. .................................................... 8 
 Method and Place of Payment of the Notes. ............................................................. 8 
 Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. ............................................... 9 
 Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Notes.......................................................... 9 
 Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Notes. ............................ 10 
 Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Notes. ........................................................... 11 
 Cancellation and Destruction of Notes Upon Payment. .......................................... 11 
 Nonpresentment of Notes. ....................................................................................... 11 
 Sale of the Notes. .................................................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE III REDEMPTION OF NOTES 

 Redemption by Issuer. ............................................................................................. 12 
 Selection of Notes to be Redeemed. ....................................................................... 12 
 Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption. ............................................................. 12 

ARTICLE IV SECURITY FOR NOTES 

 Security for the Notes. ............................................................................................ 14 
 Levy and Collection of Annual Tax. ....................................................................... 14 

ARTICLE V ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF NOTE PROCEEDS 

 Creation of Funds and Accounts. ............................................................................ 14 
 Deposit of Note Proceeds. ....................................................................................... 15 
 Application of Moneys in the Improvement Fund. ................................................. 15 
 Substitution of Improvements; Reallocation of Proceeds. ...................................... 15 
 Application of Moneys in Debt Service Account. .................................................. 15 
 Deposits and Investment of Moneys. ...................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE VI DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

 Remedies. ................................................................................................................ 16 
 Limitation on Rights of Owners. ............................................................................. 17 
 Remedies Cumulative. ............................................................................................ 17 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

ii 

ARTICLE VII DEFEASANCE 

 Defeasance. ............................................................................................................. 17 

ARTICLE VIII MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 Annual Audit. .......................................................................................................... 18 
 Amendments. .......................................................................................................... 18 
 Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by Owners. ............................................ 19 
 Notices. ................................................................................................................... 19 
 Electronic Transactions. .......................................................................................... 20 
 Further Authority. ................................................................................................... 20 
 Severability. ............................................................................................................ 20 
 Governing Law. ...................................................................................................... 20 
 Effective Date. ........................................................................................................ 20 

 

 

EXHIBIT A – FORM OF NOTES ............................................................................................................. A-1 

 

[BALANCE OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE ISSUANCE, SALE 

AND DELIVERY OF TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION TEMPORARY 

NOTES, SERIES 2023, OF RENO COUNTY, KANSAS; PROVIDING FOR THE 

LEVY AND COLLECTION OF AN ANNUAL TAX, IF NECESSARY, FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SAID NOTES 

AS THEY BECOME DUE; MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS AND 

AGREEMENTS TO PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT AND SECURITY 

THEREOF; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND 

ACTIONS CONNECTED THEREWITH. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, Reno County, Kansas (the “Issuer”) is a political subdivision, duly created, organized 

and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the laws of the State of Kansas applicable thereto, by 

proceedings duly had, the governing body of the Issuer has caused the following improvements 

(collectively, the “Improvements”) to be authorized in the County, to-wit: 

 

 

Project Description 

 

Res. No. 

 

Authority) 

Bond  

Authorization 

Sanitary sewer improvements _____ K.S.A. 19-27a01 et seq., as 

amended by Charter 

Resolution No. XXVII 

$355,000 

; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the governing body of the Issuer is authorized by law to issue general obligation 

bonds to pay a portion of the costs of the Improvements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Issuer to provide cash funds (from time to time) to meet its 

obligations incurred in acquiring necessary land and constructing the Improvements prior to the completion 

thereof and the issuance of the Issuer's general obligation bonds or the entering into of a loan transaction, and 

it is desirable and in the interest of the Issuer that such funds be raised by the issuance of temporary notes of 

the Issuer pursuant to the Act; and 

 

 WHEREAS, none of such temporary notes heretofore authorized have been issued and the Issuer 

proposes to issue its temporary notes to pay a portion of the costs of the Improvements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the governing body of the Issuer hereby finds and determines that it is necessary for 

the Issuer to authorize the issuance and delivery of the Notes in the principal amount of $355,000 to pay a 

portion of the costs of the Improvements. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF RENO 

COUNTY, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 

ARTICLE I 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

2 

DEFINITIONS 

 

 Definitions of Words and Terms.  In addition to words and terms defined 

elsewhere herein, the following words and terms as used in this Note Resolution shall have the 

meanings hereinafter set forth.  Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, words importing the 

singular number shall include the plural and vice versa, and words importing persons shall include 

firms, associations and corporations, including public bodies, as well as natural persons. 

 

 “Act” means the Constitution and statutes of the State including K.S.A. 10-101 to 10-125, 

inclusive, specifically including K.S.A. 10-123, K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., K.S.A. 19-27a01 et seq., as amended 

by Charter Resolution No. XXVII, and K.S.A. 19-101 et seq., all as amended and supplemented from time 

to time. 

 

 “Authorized Denomination” means $5,000 or any integral multiples thereof. 

 

 “Beneficial Owner” of the Notes includes any Owner of the Notes and any other Person who, 

directly or indirectly has the investment power with respect to any of the Notes. 

 

 “Bond and Interest Fund” means the Bond and Interest Fund of the Issuer for its general 

obligation bonds. 

 

 “Bond Counsel” means the firm of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., or any other attorney or firm of attorneys 

whose expertise in matters relating to the issuance of obligations by states and their political subdivisions 

is nationally recognized and acceptable to the Issuer. 

 

 “Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or holiday on which the Paying Agent 

is scheduled in the normal course of its operations to be open to the public for conduct of its operations. 

 

 “Chairman” means the duly elected and acting Chairman, or in the Chairman's absence, the duly 

appointed and/or elected Vice Chairman or Acting Chairman of the Issuer. 

 

 “Clerk” means the duly elected/appointed and acting Clerk of the Issuer, or in the Clerk's absence, 

the duly appointed Deputy, Assistant or Acting Clerk of the Issuer. 

 

 “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations 

proposed or promulgated thereunder of the United States Department of the Treasury. 

 

 “Consulting Engineer” means an independent engineer or engineering firm, having a favorable 

reputation for skill and experience in the construction, financing and operation of public facilities, at the 

time employed by the Issuer for the purpose of carrying out the duties imposed on the Consulting Engineer 

by this Note Resolution. 

 

 “Costs of Issuance” means all costs of issuing the Notes, including but not limited to all 

publication, printing, signing and mailing expenses in connection therewith, registration fees, financial 

advisory fees, all legal fees and expenses of Bond Counsel and other legal counsel, expenses incurred in 

connection with compliance with the Code, and all expenses incurred in connection with receiving ratings 

on the Notes. 

 

“County” means Reno County, Kansas. 

 

 “Dated Date” means July 27, 2023. 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

3 

 

 “Debt Service Account” means the Debt Service Account for Taxable General Obligation 

Temporary Notes, Series 2023 (within the Bond and Interest Fund) created pursuant to Section 501 hereof. 

 

 “Debt Service Requirements” means the aggregate principal payments and interest payments on 

the Notes for the period of time for which calculated; provided, however, that for purposes of calculating 

such amount, principal and interest shall be excluded from the determination of Debt Service Requirements 

to the extent that such principal or interest is payable from amounts deposited in trust, escrowed or otherwise 

set aside for the payment thereof with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank or trust company located 

in the State and having full trust powers. 

 

 “Defaulted Interest” means interest on any Note which is payable but not paid on any Interest 

Payment Date. 

 

 “Defeasance Obligations” means any of the following obligations: 

 

 (a) United States Government Obligations that are not subject to redemption in advance of 

their maturity dates; or 

 

 (b) obligations of any state or political subdivision of any state, the interest on which is 

excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and which meet the following conditions: 

 

 (1) the obligations are (i) not subject to redemption prior to maturity or (ii) the trustee 

for such obligations has been given irrevocable instructions concerning their calling and 

redemption and the issuer of such obligations has covenanted not to redeem such obligations other 

than as set forth in such instructions; 

 

 (2) the obligations are secured by cash or United States Government Obligations that 

may be applied only to principal of, premium, if any, and interest payments on such obligations; 

 

 (3) such cash and the principal of and interest on such United States Government 

Obligations (plus any cash in the escrow fund) are sufficient to meet the liabilities of the 

obligations; 

 

 (4) such cash and United States Government Obligations serving as security for the 

obligations are held in an escrow fund by an escrow agent or a trustee irrevocably in trust; 

 

 (5) such cash and United States Government Obligations are not available to satisfy 

any other claims, including those against the trustee or escrow agent; and 

 

 (6) such obligations are rated in a rating category by Moody's or Standard & Poor's 

that is no lower than the rating category then assigned by that Rating Agency to United States 

Government Obligations. 

 

 “Derivative” means any investment instrument whose market price is derived from the fluctuating 

value of an underlying asset, index, currency, futures contract, including futures, options and collateralized 

mortgage obligations. 

 

 “Event of Default” means each of the following occurrences or events: 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

4 

 (a) Payment of the principal and of the redemption premium, if any, of any of the Notes shall 

not be made when the same shall become due and payable, either at Stated Maturity or by proceedings for 

redemption or otherwise; 

 

 (b) Payment of any installment of interest on any of the Notes shall not be made when the same 

shall become due; or 

 

 (c) The Issuer shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the covenants, 

conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Notes or in this Note Resolution on the part of the 

Issuer to be performed, and such default shall continue for thirty (30) days after written notice specifying 

such default and requiring same to be remedied shall have been given to the Issuer by the Owner of any of 

the Notes then Outstanding. 

 

 “Financeable Costs” means the amount of expenditure for an Improvement which has been duly 

authorized by action of the governing body of the Issuer to be financed by general obligation bonds, less:  

(a) the amount of any temporary notes or general obligation bonds of the Issuer which are currently 

Outstanding and available to pay such Financeable Costs; and (b) any amount of Financeable Costs which 

has been previously paid by the Issuer or by any eligible source of funds unless such amounts are entitled 

to be reimbursed to the Issuer under State or federal law. 

 

 “Fiscal Year” means the twelve month period ending on December 31. 

 

 “Funds and Accounts” means funds and accounts created by or referred to in Section 501 hereof. 

 

 “Improvement Fund” means the Improvement Fund for Taxable General Obligation Temporary 

Notes, Series 2023 created pursuant to Section 501 hereof. 

 

 “Improvements” means the improvements referred to in the preamble to this Note Resolution and 

any Substitute Improvements. 

 

 “Independent Accountant” means an independent certified public accountant or firm of 

independent certified public accountants at the time employed by the Issuer for the purpose of carrying out 

the duties imposed on the Independent Accountant by this Note Resolution. 

 

 “Interest Payment Date(s)” means the Maturity of the Notes, which shall be August 1, 2025 or 

earlier redemption. 

 

 “Issue Date” means the date when the Issuer delivers the Notes to the Purchaser in exchange for 

the Purchase Price. 

 

 “Issuer” means the County and any successors or assigns. 

 

 “Maturity” when used with respect to any Note means the date on which the principal of such 

Note becomes due and payable as therein and herein provided, whether at the Stated Maturity thereof or 

call for redemption or otherwise. 

 

 “Moody's” means Moody's Investors Service, a corporation organized and existing under the laws 

of the State of Delaware, and its successors and assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or 

liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, “Moody's” shall be deemed 

to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by the Issuer. 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

5 

 “Note Payment Date” means any date on which principal of or interest on any Note is payable. 

 

 “Note Register” means the books for the registration, transfer and exchange of Notes kept at the 

office of the Note Registrar. 

 

 “Note Registrar” means the Treasurer of Reno County, Kansas and its successors and assigns. 

 

 “Note Resolution” means this resolution relating to the Notes. 

 

 “Notes” means the Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2023, authorized and 

issued by the Issuer pursuant to this Note Resolution. 

 

 “Notice Address” means with respect to the following entities: 

 

 (a) To the Issuer at: 

 

   206 West First Street 

   Hutchinson, Kansas 67501 

   Fax:  (620) 694-2534 

 

 (b) To the Paying Agent at: 

 

   206 West First Street 

   Hutchinson, Kansas 67501 

   Fax:  (620) 694-2534 

 

 (c) To the Purchaser: 

 

   206 West First Street 

   Hutchinson, Kansas 67501 

   Fax:  (620) 694-2534 

 

 “Notice Representative” means: 

 

 (a) With respect to the Issuer, the Clerk. 

 

 (b) With respect to the Note Registrar and Paying Agent, the Treasurer of the County. 

 

 (c) With respect to any Purchaser, the Clerk. 

 

 “Outstanding” means, when used with reference to the Notes, as of a particular date of 

determination, all Notes theretofore authenticated and delivered, except the following Notes: 

 

 (a) Notes theretofore canceled by the Paying Agent or delivered to the Paying Agent for 

cancellation; 

 

 (b) Notes deemed to be paid in accordance with the provisions of Article VII hereof; and 

 

 (c) Notes in exchange for or in lieu of which other Notes have been authenticated and delivered 

hereunder. 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

6 

 “Owner” when used with respect to any Note means the Person in whose name such Note is 

registered on the Note Register.   

 

 “Paying Agent” means the Treasurer of Reno County, Kansas, and any successors and assigns. 

 

 “Permitted Investments” shall mean the investments hereinafter described, provided, however, 

no moneys or funds shall be invested in a Derivative:  (a) investments authorized by K.S.A. 12-1675 and 

amendments thereto; (b) the municipal investment pool established pursuant to K.S.A. 12-1677a, and 

amendments thereto; (c) direct obligations of the United States Government or any agency thereof; (d) the 

Issuer's temporary notes issued pursuant to K.S.A. 10-123 and amendments thereto; (e) interest-bearing 

time deposits in commercial banks or trust companies located in the Issuer which are insured by the Federal 

Deposit Insurance Corporation or collateralized by securities described in (c); (f) obligations of the federal 

national mortgage association, federal home loan banks, federal home loan mortgage corporation or 

government national mortgage association; (g) repurchase agreements for securities described in (c) or (f); 

(h) investment agreements or other obligations of a financial institution the obligations of which at the time 

of investment are rated in either of the three highest rating categories by Moody's or Standard & Poor's; (i) 

investments and shares or units of a money market fund or trust, the portfolio of which is comprised entirely 

of securities described in (c) or (f); (j) receipts evidencing ownership interests in securities or portions 

thereof described in (c) or (f); (k) municipal bonds or other obligations issued by any municipality of the 

State as defined in K.S.A. 10-1101 which are general obligations of the municipality issuing the same; or 

(l) bonds of any municipality of the State as defined in K.S.A. 10-1101 which have been refunded in 

advance of their maturity and are fully secured as to payment of principal and interest thereon by deposit 

in trust, under escrow agreement with a bank, of securities described in (c) or (f), all as may be further 

restricted or modified by amendments to applicable State law. 

 

 “Person” means any natural person, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, firm, joint-

stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, or government or any agency or political subdivision 

thereof or other public body. 

 

 “Purchase Price” means the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued interest to the date of 

delivery. 

 

 “Purchaser” means Reno County, Kansas, the original purchaser of the Notes, using the Notes as 

an investment of its Capital Improvement Reserve Fund, and any successors and assigns. 

 

 “Rating Agency” means any company, agency or entity that provides financial ratings for the Notes. 

 

 “Record Dates” for the interest payable on any Interest Payment Date means the fifteenth day 

(whether or not a Business Day) of the calendar month next preceding such Interest Payment Date. 

 

 “Redemption Date” when used with respect to any Note to be redeemed means the date fixed for 

the redemption of such Note pursuant to the terms of this Note Resolution. 

 

 “Redemption Price” when used with respect to any Note to be redeemed means the price at which 

such Note is to be redeemed pursuant to the terms of this Note Resolution, including the applicable 

redemption premium, if any, but excluding installments of interest whose Stated Maturity is on or before 

the Redemption Date. 

 

 “SEC Rule” means Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

7 

 “Special Record Date” means the date fixed by the Paying Agent pursuant to Article II hereof for 

the payment of Defaulted Interest. 

 

 “Standard & Poor's” means Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of McGraw Hill 

Financial Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, and its 

successors and assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the 

functions of a securities rating agency, Standard & Poor's shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally 

recognized securities rating agency designated by the Issuer. 

 

 “State” means the state of Kansas. 

 

 “State Treasurer” means the duly elected Treasurer or, in the Treasurer's absence, the duly 

appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the State. 

 

 “Stated Maturity” when used with respect to any Note or any installment of interest thereon means 

the date specified in such Note and this Note Resolution as the fixed date on which the principal of such 

Note or such installment of interest is due and payable. 

 

 “Substitute Improvements” means the substitute or additional improvements of the Issuer 

described in Article V hereof. 

 

 “Treasurer” means the duly appointed and/or elected Treasurer or, in the Treasurer's absence, the 

duly appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the Issuer. 

 

 “United States Government Obligations” means bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, 

treasury bills or other securities constituting direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest 

on which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to full and timely payment by, the United States of 

America, including evidences of a direct ownership interest in future interest or principal payment on 

obligations issued by the United States of America (including the interest component of  obligations of the 

Resolution Funding Corporation), or securities which represent an undivided interest in such obligations, 

which obligations are rated in the highest rating category by a nationally recognized rating service and such 

obligations are held in a custodial account for the benefit of the Issuer. 

 

 

ARTICLE II 

 

AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE NOTES 

 

 Authorization of the Notes.  There shall be issued and hereby are authorized and 

directed to be issued the Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2023, of the Issuer 

in the principal amount of $355,000, for the purpose of providing funds to:  (a) pay a portion of the 

costs of the Improvements; and (b) pay Costs of Issuance. 

 

 Description of the Notes.  The Notes shall consist of fully registered notes in 

Authorized Denominations, and shall be numbered in such manner as the Note Registrar shall 

determine.  All of the Notes shall be dated as of the Dated Date, shall become due in the amounts 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

8 

on the Stated Maturity, subject to redemption and payment prior to the Stated Maturity as provided 

in Article III hereof, and shall bear interest at the rates per annum as follows: 

 

Stated Maturity 

August 1 

Principal 

Amount 

Annual Rate 

of Interest 

2025 $355,000 3.500% 

 

 The Notes shall bear interest at the above specified rates (computed on the basis of a 360-day year 

of twelve 30-day months) from the Dated Date or the Interest Payment Date in the manner set forth in 

Section 204 hereof. 

 

 Each of the Notes, as originally issued or issued upon transfer, exchange or substitution, shall be 

printed in accordance with the format required by the Attorney General of the State and shall be 

substantially in the form attached hereto as EXHIBIT A or as may be required by the Attorney General 

pursuant to the Notice of Systems of Registration for Kansas Municipal Bonds, 2 Kan. Reg. 921 (1983), in 

accordance with the Kansas Bond Registration Law, K.S.A. 10-620 et seq. 

 

 Designation of Paying Agent and Note Registrar.  The Treasurer of Reno 

County, Hutchinson, Kansas, is hereby designated as the Paying Agent for the payment of principal 

of and interest on the Note and Note Registrar with respect to the registration, transfer and exchange 

of Notes.  The Chairman of the Issuer is hereby authorized and empowered to execute on behalf of 

the Issuer an agreement with the Note Registrar and Paying Agent for the Notes. 

 

 The Issuer will at all times maintain a Paying Agent and Note Registrar meeting the qualifications 

herein described for the performance of the duties hereunder.  The Issuer reserves the right to appoint a 

successor Paying Agent or Note Registrar by (a) filing with the Paying Agent or Note Registrar then 

performing such function a certified copy of the proceedings giving notice of the termination of such Paying 

Agent or Note Registrar and appointing a successor, and (b) causing notice of appointment of the successor 

Paying Agent and Note Registrar to be given by first class mail to each Owner.  No resignation or removal 

of the Paying Agent or Note Registrar shall become effective until a successor has been appointed and has 

accepted the duties of Paying Agent or Note Registrar. 

 

 Every Paying Agent or Note Registrar appointed hereunder shall at all times meet the requirements 

of K.S.A. 10-501 et seq. and K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., respectively. 

 

 Method and Place of Payment of the Notes.  The principal of, or Redemption 

Price, if any, and interest on the Notes shall be payable in any coin or currency which, on the 

respective dates of payment thereof, is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. 

 

 The principal or Redemption Price of each Note shall be paid at Maturity to the Person in whose 

name such Note is registered on the Note Register at the Maturity thereof, upon presentation and surrender 

of such Note at the principal office of the Paying Agent.  The interest payable on each Note on any Interest 

Payment Date shall be paid to the Owner of such Note as shown on the Note Register at the close of business 

on the Record Date for such interest by check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to the address of such 

Owner shown on the Note Register or at such other address as is furnished to the Paying Agent in writing 

by such Owner. 

 

 Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, any Defaulted Interest with respect to 

any Note shall cease to be payable to the Owner of such Note on the relevant Record Date and shall be 

payable to the Owner in whose name such Note is registered at the close of business on the Special Record 

Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which Special Record Date shall be fixed as hereinafter 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

9 

specified in this paragraph.  The Issuer shall notify the Paying Agent in writing of the amount of Defaulted 

Interest proposed to be paid on each Note and the date of the proposed payment (which date shall be at least 

45 days after receipt of such notice by the Paying Agent) and shall deposit with the Paying Agent at the 

time of such notice an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount proposed to be paid in respect of 

such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Paying Agent for such deposit prior 

to the date of the proposed payment.  Following receipt of such funds the Paying Agent shall fix a Special 

Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest which shall be not more than 15 nor less than 10 

days prior to the date of the proposed payment.  The Paying Agent shall promptly notify the Issuer of such 

Special Record Date and, in the name and at the expense of the Issuer, shall cause notice of the proposed 

payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefor to be mailed, by first class mail, 

postage prepaid, to each Owner of a Note entitled to such notice at the address of such Owner as it appears 

on the Note Register not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date. 

 

 The Paying Agent shall keep a record of payment of principal and Redemption Price of and interest 

on all Notes and at least annually shall forward a copy or summary of such records to the Issuer. 

 

 Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays.  In any case where a Note 

Payment Date is not a Business Day, then payment of principal, Redemption Price or interest need 

not be made on such Note Payment Date but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day 

with the same force and effect as if made on such Note Payment Date, and no interest shall accrue 

for the period after such Note Payment Date. 

 

 Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Notes.  The Issuer covenants that, as 

long as any of the Notes remain Outstanding, it will cause the Note Register to be kept at the office 

of the Note Registrar as herein provided.  Each Note when issued shall be registered in the name 

of the Owner thereof on the Note Register. 

 

 Notes may be transferred and exchanged only on the Note Register as provided in this Section.  An 

Owner shall only have the authority to transfer and exchange Notes in an aggregate principal amount of 

$100,000 or more unless such transfer and exchange is made through a primary offering (as defined in the 

SEC Rule).  Upon surrender of any Note at the principal office of the Note Registrar, the Note Registrar 

shall transfer or exchange such Note for a new Note or Notes in any Authorized Denomination of the same 

Stated Maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount as the Note that was presented for transfer or 

exchange.  

 

 Notes presented for transfer or exchange shall be accompanied by a written instrument or 

instruments of transfer or authorization for exchange, in a form and with guarantee of signature satisfactory 

to the Note Registrar, duly executed by the Owner thereof or by the Owner's duly authorized agent. 

 

 In all cases in which the privilege of transferring or exchanging Notes is exercised, the Note 

Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Notes in accordance with the provisions of this Note Resolution.  

The Issuer shall pay the fees and expenses of the Note Registrar for the registration, transfer and exchange 

of Notes provided for by this Note Resolution and the cost of printing a reasonable supply of registered 

note blanks.  Any additional costs or fees that might be incurred in the secondary market, other than fees of 

the Note Registrar, are the responsibility of the Owners of the Notes.  In the event any Owner fails to provide 

a correct taxpayer identification number to the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent may make a charge against 

such Owner sufficient to pay any governmental charge required to be paid as a result of such failure.  In 

compliance with Section 3406 of the Code, such amount may be deducted by the Paying Agent from 

amounts otherwise payable to such Owner hereunder or under the Notes. 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

10 

 The Issuer and the Note Registrar shall not be required to register the transfer or exchange of any 

Note during a period beginning at the opening of business on the day after receiving written notice from 

the Issuer of its intent to pay Defaulted Interest and ending at the close of business on the date fixed for the 

payment of Defaulted Interest pursuant to this Article II. 

 

 The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose name any Note is 

registered on the Note Register as the absolute Owner of such Note, whether such Note is overdue or not, 

for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or Redemption Price of and interest 

on said Note and for all other purposes.  All payments so made to any such Owner or upon the Owner's 

order shall be valid and effective to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the 

sum or sums so paid, and neither the Issuer nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the 

contrary. 

 

 At reasonable times and under reasonable regulations established by the Note Registrar, the Note 

Register may be inspected and copied by the Owners (or a designated representative thereof) of 10% or 

more in principal amount of the Notes then Outstanding or any designated representative of such Owners 

whose authority is evidenced to the satisfaction of the Note Registrar. 

 

 Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Notes.  Each of the 

Notes, including any Notes issued in exchange or as substitutions for the Notes initially delivered, 

shall be executed for and on behalf of the Issuer by the manual or facsimile signature of the 

Chairman, attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk and the seal of the Issuer shall 

be affixed thereto or imprinted thereon.  The Chairman and Clerk are hereby authorized and 

directed to prepare and execute the Notes in the manner herein specified, and to cause the Notes to 

be registered in the office of the Clerk, which registration shall be evidenced by the manual or 

facsimile signature of the Clerk with the seal of the Issuer affixed thereto or imprinted thereon.  The 

Notes shall also be registered in the office of the State Treasurer, which registration shall be 

evidenced by the manual or facsimile signature of the State Treasurer with the seal of the State 

Treasurer affixed thereto or imprinted thereon.  The Notes shall be countersigned by the manual or 

facsimile signature of the Clerk and the seal of the Issuer shall be affixed or imprinted adjacent 

thereto following registration of the Notes by the Treasurer of the State of Kansas.  In case any 

officer whose signature appears on any Notes ceases to be such officer before the delivery of such 

Notes, such signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, as if such person 

had remained in office until delivery.  Any Note may be signed by such persons who at the actual 

time of the execution of such Note are the proper officers to sign such Note although at the date of 

such Note such persons may not have been such officers. 

 

 The Chairman and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and execute the Notes as 

herein specified, and when duly executed, to deliver the Notes to the Note Registrar for authentication. 

 

 The Notes shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form 

attached hereto as EXHIBIT A hereof, which shall be manually executed by an authorized officer or 

employee of the Note Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same officer or employee sign the 

certificate of authentication on all of the Notes that may be issued hereunder at any one time.  No Note shall 

be entitled to any security or benefit under this Note Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose 

unless and until such certificate of authentication has been duly executed by the Note Registrar.  Such 

executed certificate of authentication upon any Note shall be conclusive evidence that such Note has been 

duly authenticated and delivered under this Note Resolution.  Upon authentication, the Note Registrar shall 

deliver the Notes to the Purchaser upon instructions of the Issuer or its representative. 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

11 

 Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Notes.  If (a) any mutilated Note is 

surrendered to the Note Registrar or the Note Registrar receives evidence to its satisfaction of the 

destruction, loss or theft of any Note, and (b) there is delivered to the Issuer and the Note Registrar 

such security or indemnity as may be required by each of them, then, in the absence of notice to 

the Issuer or the Note Registrar that such Note has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the 

Issuer shall execute and, upon the Issuer's request, the Note Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, 

in exchange for or in lieu of any such  mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Note, a new Note of the 

same Stated Maturity and of like tenor and principal amount. 

 

 If any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Note has become or is about to become due and 

payable, the Issuer, in its discretion, may pay such Note instead of issuing a new Note. 

 

 Upon the issuance of any new Note under this Section, the Issuer may require the payment by the 

Owner of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation 

thereto and any other expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent) connected therewith. 

 

 Every new Note issued pursuant to this Section shall constitute a replacement of the prior obligation 

of the Issuer, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Note Resolution equally and ratably with all 

other Outstanding Notes. 

 

 Cancellation and Destruction of Notes Upon Payment.  All Notes that have been 

paid or redeemed or that otherwise have been surrendered to the Paying Agent, either at or before 

Maturity, shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent immediately upon the payment, redemption and  

surrender thereof to the Paying Agent and subsequently destroyed in accordance with the customary 

practices of the Paying Agent.  The Paying Agent shall execute a certificate in duplicate describing 

the Notes so cancelled and destroyed and shall file an executed counterpart of such certificate with 

the Issuer. 

 

 Nonpresentment of Notes.  If any Note is not presented for payment when the 

principal thereof becomes due at Maturity, if funds sufficient to pay such Note have been made 

available to the Paying Agent all liability of the Issuer to the Owner thereof for the payment of such 

Note shall forthwith cease, determine and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the 

duty of the Paying Agent to hold such funds, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of 

the Owner of such Note, who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such funds for any claim 

of whatever nature on his part under this Note Resolution or on, or with respect to, said Note.  If 

any Note is not presented for payment within four (4) years following the date when such Note 

becomes due at Maturity, the Paying Agent shall repay, without liability for interest thereon, to the 

Issuer the funds theretofore held by it for payment of such Note, and such Note shall, subject to the 

defense of any applicable statute of limitation, thereafter be an unsecured obligation of the Issuer, 

and the Owner thereof shall be entitled to look only to the Issuer for payment, and then only to the 

extent of the amount so repaid to it by the Paying Agent, and the Issuer shall not be liable for any 

interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee of such money. 

 

 Sale of the Notes.  The sale of the Notes to the Purchaser is hereby ratified and 

confirmed.  Delivery of the Notes shall be made to the Purchaser on the Issue Date (which shall be 

as soon as practicable after the adoption of this Note Resolution), upon payment of the Purchase 

Price. 

 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

12 

ARTICLE III 

 

REDEMPTION OF NOTES 

 

 Redemption by Issuer.   

 

 Optional Redemption.  At the option of the Issuer, the Notes or portions thereof may be called for 

redemption and payment prior to their Stated Maturity as a whole or in part (selection of the amount of 

Notes to be redeemed to be determined by the Issuer in such equitable manner as it may determine) at any 

time, at the Redemption Price of 100% (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount), plus accrued 

interest thereon to the Redemption Date. 

 

 Selection of Notes to be Redeemed.  Notes shall be redeemed only in an 

Authorized Denomination.  When less than all of the Notes are to be redeemed and paid prior to 

their Stated Maturity, such Notes shall be redeemed in such manner as the Issuer shall determine.  

Notes of less than a full Stated Maturity shall be selected by the Note Registrar in a minimum 

Authorized Denomination of principal amount in such equitable manner as the Note Registrar may 

determine. 

 

 In the case of a partial redemption of Notes by lot when Notes of denominations greater than a 

minimum Authorized Denomination are then Outstanding, then for all purposes in connection with such 

redemption each minimum Authorized Denomination of face value shall be treated as though it were a 

separate Note of the denomination of a minimum Authorized Denomination.  If it is determined that one or 

more, but not all, of a minimum Authorized Denomination of face value represented by any Note is selected 

for redemption, then upon notice of intention to redeem a minimum Authorized Denomination, the Owner 

or the Owner's duly authorized agent shall forthwith present and surrender such Note to the Note Registrar:  

(1) for payment of the Redemption Price and interest to the Redemption Date of a minimum Authorized 

Denomination of face value called for redemption, and (2) for exchange, without charge to the Owner 

thereof, for a new Note or Notes of the aggregate principal amount of the unredeemed portion of the 

principal amount of such Note.  If the Owner of any such Note fails to present such Note to the Paying 

Agent for payment and exchange as aforesaid, such Note shall, nevertheless, become due and payable on 

the redemption date to the extent of a minimum Authorized Denomination of face value called for 

redemption (and to that extent only). 

 

 Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption.  In the event the Issuer desires to call 

the Notes for redemption prior to maturity, written notice of such intent shall be provided to the 

State Treasurer and Note Registrar in accordance with K.S.A. 10-129, as amended, not less than 30 

days prior to the Redemption Date.  The Note Registrar shall call Notes for redemption and payment 

and shall give notice of such redemption as herein provided upon receipt by the Note Registrar at 

least 30 days prior to the Redemption Date of written instructions of the Issuer specifying the 

principal amount, Stated Maturities, Redemption Date and Redemption Prices of the Notes to be 

called for redemption.  The Paying Agent may in its discretion waive such notice period so long as 

the notice requirements set forth in this Section are met. 

 

 Unless waived by any Owner of Notes to be redeemed, if the Issuer shall call any Notes for 

redemption and payment prior to the Stated Maturity thereof, the Issuer shall give written notice of its 

intention to call and pay said Notes to the Note Registrar and the Purchaser.  In addition, the Issuer shall 

cause the Note Registrar to give written notice of redemption to the Owners of said Notes.  Each of said 

written notices shall be deposited in the United States first class mail not less than 15 days prior to the 

Redemption Date. 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

13 

 All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall contain the following information: 

 

 (a) the Redemption Date; 

 

 (b) the Redemption Price; 

 

 (c) if less than all Outstanding Notes are to be redeemed, the identification (and, in the case of 

partial redemption of any Notes, the respective principal amounts) of the Notes to be redeemed; 

 

 (d) a statement that on the Redemption Date the Redemption Price will become due and 

payable upon each such Note or portion thereof called for redemption and that interest thereon shall cease 

to accrue from and after the Redemption Date; and 

 

 (e) the place where such Notes are to be surrendered for payment of the Redemption Price, 

which shall be the principal office of the Paying Agent. 

 

 The failure of any Owner to receive notice given as heretofore provided or an immaterial defect 

therein shall not invalidate any redemption. 

 

 Prior to any Redemption Date, the Issuer shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount of money 

sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of all the Notes or portions of Notes that are to be redeemed on such 

Redemption Date. 

 

 Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Notes or portions of Notes to be 

redeemed shall become due and payable on the Redemption Date, at the Redemption Price therein specified, 

and from and after the Redemption Date (unless the Issuer defaults in the payment of the Redemption Price) 

such Notes or portion of Notes shall cease to bear interest.  Upon surrender of such Notes for redemption 

in accordance with such notice, the Redemption Price of such Notes shall be paid by the Paying Agent.  

Installments of interest due on or prior to the Redemption Date shall be payable as herein provided for 

payment of interest.  Upon surrender for any partial redemption of any Note, there shall be prepared for the 

Owner a new Note or Notes of the same Stated Maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal as provided 

herein.  All Notes that have been surrendered for redemption shall be cancelled and destroyed by the Paying 

Agent as provided herein and shall not be reissued. 

 

 In addition to the foregoing notice, further notice may be given by the Issuer or the Note Registrar 

on behalf of the Issuer as set out below, but no defect in said further notice nor any failure to give all or any 

portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if official 

notice thereof is given as above prescribed: 

 

 (a) Each further notice of redemption given hereunder shall contain the information required 

above for an official notice of redemption plus (1) the date of issue of the Notes as originally issued; (3) the 

rate of interest borne by each Note being redeemed; (4) the maturity date of each Note being redeemed; and 

(5) any other descriptive information needed to identify accurately the Notes being redeemed. 

 

 (b) Each further notice of redemption shall be sent at least one day before the mailing of notice 

to Owners by first class, registered or certified mail or overnight delivery, as determined by the Note 

Registrar, to all registered securities depositories then in the business of holding substantial amounts of 

obligations of types comprising the Notes and to one or more national information services that disseminate 

notices of redemption of obligations such as the Notes. 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

14 

 The Paying Agent is also directed to comply with any mandatory standards then in effect for 

processing redemptions of municipal securities established by the State or the Securities and Exchange 

Commission.  Failure to comply with such standards shall not affect or invalidate the redemption of any 

Note. 

 

 

ARTICLE IV 

 

SECURITY FOR NOTES 

 

 Security for the Notes.  The Notes shall be general obligations of the Issuer payable 

as to both principal and interest from charges imposed by the governing body of the Issuer within 

Sewer District Nos. 201 (Yoder) and 202 (H.A.B.I.T.), Reno County, Kansas (the “Districts”) for the 

use of sewer improvements, or from general obligation bonds of the Issuer or loan proceeds, and if 

not so paid, from ad valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon 

all the taxable tangible property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of the Issuer.  The full 

faith, credit and resources of the Issuer are hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the 

principal of and interest on the Notes as the same become due. 

 

 Levy and Collection of Annual Tax.  The governing body of the Issuer shall 

annually make provision for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes 

as the same become due, if necessary, by levying and collecting the necessary taxes upon all of the 

taxable tangible property within the Issuer in the manner provided by law. 

 

 The taxes referred to above shall be extended upon the tax rolls and shall be levied and collected at 

the same time and in the same manner as the other ad valorem taxes of the Issuer are levied and collected.  

The proceeds derived from said taxes shall be deposited in the Bond and Interest Fund, shall be kept separate 

and apart from all other funds of the Issuer shall thereafter be deposited in the Debt Service Account and 

shall be used solely for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Notes as and when the same 

become due, and the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent.  

 

 If at any time said taxes are not collected in time to pay the principal of or interest on the Notes 

when due, the Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to pay said principal or interest out of the general 

funds of the Issuer and to reimburse said general funds for money so expended when said taxes are 

collected. 

 

 

ARTICLE V 

 

ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF NOTE PROCEEDS 

 

 Creation of Funds and Accounts.  Simultaneously with the issuance of the Notes, 

there shall be created within the Treasury of the Issuer the following funds and accounts: 

 

 (a) Improvement Fund for Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2023. 

 

 (b) Debt Service Account for Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2023. 

 

 The Funds and Accounts established herein shall be administered in accordance with the provisions 

of this Note Resolution so long as the Notes are Outstanding. 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

15 

 

 Deposit of Note Proceeds.  The net proceeds received from the sale of the Notes 

shall be deposited simultaneously with the delivery of the Notes as follows: 

 

 (a) All accrued interest received from the sale of the Notes shall be deposited in the Debt 

Service Account. 

 

 (b) The remaining balance of the proceeds derived from the sale of the Notes ($355,000) shall 

be deposited in the Improvement Fund. 

 

 Application of Moneys in the Improvement Fund.  Moneys in the Improvement 

Fund shall be used for the sole purpose of:  (a) paying the costs of the Improvements, in accordance 

with the plans and specifications therefor prepared by the Consulting Engineer heretofore approved 

by the governing body of the Issuer and on file in the office of the Clerk, including any alterations 

in or amendments to said plans and specifications deemed advisable by the Consulting Engineer 

and approved by the governing body of the Issuer; and (b) paying Costs of Issuance. 

 

 Withdrawals from the Improvement Fund shall be made only when authorized by the governing 

body of the Issuer and only on duly authorized and executed warrants therefor accompanied by a certificate 

executed by the Chairman (or designate) that such payment is being made for a purpose within the scope 

of this Note Resolution and that the amount of such payment represents only the contract price of the 

property, equipment, labor, materials or service being paid for or, if such payment is not being made 

pursuant to an express contract, that such payment is not in excess of the reasonable value thereof.  

Authorizations for withdrawals for other authorized purposes shall be supported by a certificate executed 

by the Chairman (or designate) stating that such payment is being made for a purpose within the scope of 

this Note Resolution.  Upon completion of the Improvements, any surplus remaining in the Improvement 

Fund shall be deposited in the Debt Service Account. 

 

 Substitution of Improvements; Reallocation of Proceeds. 

 

 (a) The Issuer may elect for any reason to substitute or add other public improvements to be 

financed with proceeds of the Notes provided the following conditions are met:  (1) the Substitute 

Improvement and the issuance of general obligation bonds to pay the cost of the Substitute Improvement 

has been duly authorized by the governing body of the Issuer in accordance with the laws of the State; (2) 

a resolution authorizing the use of the proceeds of the Notes to pay the Financeable Costs of the Substitute 

Improvement has been duly adopted by the governing body of the Issuer pursuant to this Section, and (3) 

the Attorney General of the State has approved the amendment made by such resolution to the transcript of 

proceedings for the Notes to include the Substitute Improvements. 

 

 (b) The Issuer may reallocate expenditure of Note proceeds among all Improvements financed 

by the Notes; provided the following conditions are met:  (1) the reallocation is approved by the governing 

body of the Issuer; and (2) the reallocation shall not cause the proceeds of the Notes allocated to any 

Improvement to exceed the Financeable Costs of the Improvement. 

 

 Application of Moneys in Debt Service Account.  All amounts paid and credited 

to the Debt Service Account shall be expended and used by the Issuer for the sole purpose of paying 

the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Notes as and when the same become due 

and the usual and customary fees and expenses of the Note Registrar and Paying Agent.  The 

Treasurer is authorized and directed to withdraw from the Debt Service Account sums sufficient to 

pay both principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Notes and the fees and expenses of 

the Note Registrar and Paying Agent as and when the same become due, and to forward such sums 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

16 

to the Paying Agent, if other than the Issuer, in a manner which ensures that the Paying Agent will 

receive immediately available funds in such amounts on or before the Business Day immediately 

preceding the dates when such principal, interest and fees of the Note Registrar and Paying Agent 

will become due.  If, through the lapse of time or otherwise, the Owners of Notes are no longer 

entitled to enforce payment of the Notes or the interest thereon, the Paying Agent shall return said 

funds to the Issuer.  All moneys deposited with the Paying Agent shall be deemed to be deposited 

in accordance with and subject to all of the provisions contained in this Note Resolution and shall 

be held by the Paying Agent for the benefit of the Owners of the Notes entitled to payment from 

such moneys.  

 

 Any moneys or investments remaining in the Debt Service Account after the retirement of the 

indebtedness for which the Notes were issued shall be transferred and paid into the Bond and Interest Fund. 

 

 Deposits and Investment of Moneys.  Moneys in each of the Funds and Accounts 

shall be deposited in accordance with laws of the State, in a bank, savings and loan association or 

savings bank organized under the laws of the State, any other state or the United States which has 

a main or branch office located in the Issuer.  All such depositaries shall be members of the Federal 

Deposit Insurance Corporation, or otherwise as permitted by State law.  All such deposits shall be 

invested in Permitted Investments as set forth in this Article or shall be adequately secured as 

provided by the laws of the State.  All moneys held in the Funds and Accounts shall be kept separate 

and apart from all other funds of the Issuer so that there shall be no commingling with any other 

funds of the Issuer.   

 

 Moneys held in any Fund or Account may be invested in accordance with this Note Resolution and 

the Arbitrage Instructions in Permitted Investments; provided, however, that no such investment shall be 

made for a period extending longer than to the date when the moneys invested may be needed for the 

purpose for which such fund was created.  All earnings on any investments held in any Fund or Account 

shall accrue to and become a part of such Fund or Account. 

 

ARTICLE VI 

 

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

 

 Remedies.  The provisions of the Note Resolution, including the covenants and 

agreements herein contained, shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and the Owners of the 

Notes.  If an Event of Default occurs and shall be continuing, the Owner or Owners of not less than 

10% in principal amount of the Notes at the time Outstanding shall have the right for the equal 

benefit and protection of all Owners of Notes similarly situated: 

 

 (a) by mandamus or other suit, action or proceedings at law or in equity to enforce the rights 

of such Owner or Owners against the Issuer and its officers, agents and employees, and to require and 

compel duties and obligations required by the provisions of the Note Resolution or by the Constitution and 

laws of the State; 

 

 (b) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to require the Issuer, its officers, 

agents and employees to account as if they were the trustees of an express trust; and 

 

 (c) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to enjoin any acts or things which 

may be unlawful or in violation of the rights of the Owners of the Notes. 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

17 

 Limitation on Rights of Owners.  The covenants and agreements of the Issuer 

contained herein and in the Notes shall be for the equal benefit, protection, and security of the 

Owners of any or all of the Notes, all of which Notes shall be of equal rank and without preference 

or priority of one Note over any other Note in the application of the funds herein pledged to the 

payment of the principal of and the interest on the Notes, or otherwise, except as to rate of interest, 

date of maturity and right of prior redemption as provided in this Note Resolution.  No one or more 

Owners secured hereby shall have any right in any manner whatever by his or their action to affect, 

disturb or prejudice the security granted and provided for herein, or to enforce any right hereunder, 

except in the manner herein provided, and all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, 

had and maintained for the equal benefit of all Outstanding Notes. 

 

 Remedies Cumulative.  No remedy conferred herein upon the Owners is intended 

to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each such remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to 

every other remedy and may be exercised without exhausting and without regard to any other 

remedy conferred herein.  No waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Owner of 

any Note shall extend to or affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or shall 

impair any rights or remedies thereon.  No delay or omission of any Owner to exercise any right or 

power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a 

waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein.  Every substantive right and every remedy 

conferred upon the Owners of the Notes by this Note Resolution may be enforced and exercised 

from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.  If action or proceedings taken by any 

Owner on account of any default or to enforce any right or exercise any remedy has been 

discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely to such Owner, 

then, and in every such case, the Issuer and the Owners of the Notes shall be restored to their former 

positions and rights hereunder, respectively, and all rights, remedies, powers and duties of the 

Owners shall continue as if no such suit, action or other proceedings had been brought or taken. 

 

 

ARTICLE VII 

 

DEFEASANCE 

 

 Defeasance.  When any or all of the Notes, redemption premium, if any, or 

scheduled interest payments thereon have been paid and discharged, then the requirements 

contained in this Note Resolution and the pledge of the Issuer's faith and credit hereunder and all 

other rights granted hereby shall terminate with respect to the Notes or scheduled interest payments 

thereon so paid and discharged.  Notes, redemption premium, if any, or scheduled interest payments 

thereon shall be deemed to have been paid and discharged within the meaning of this Note 

Resolution if there has been deposited with the Paying Agent, or other commercial bank or trust 

company located in the State and having full trust powers, at or prior to the Stated Maturity or 

Redemption Date of said Notes or the interest payments thereon, in trust for and irrevocably 

appropriated thereto, moneys and/or Defeasance Obligations which, together with the interest to be 

earned on any such Defeasance Obligations, will be sufficient for the payment of the principal of 

or Redemption Price of said Notes and/or interest accrued to the Stated Maturity or Redemption 

Date, or if default in such payment has occurred on such date, then to the date of the tender of such 

payments.  If the amount to be so deposited is based on the Redemption Price of any Notes, no such 

satisfaction shall occur until (a) the Issuer has elected to redeem such Notes, and (b) either notice 

of such redemption has been given, or the Issuer has given irrevocable instructions, or shall have 

provided for an escrow agent to give irrevocable instructions, to the Note Registrar to give such 

notice of redemption in compliance with Article III.  Any money and Defeasance Obligations that 

at any time shall be deposited with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank or trust company 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

18 

by or on behalf of the Issuer, for the purpose of paying and discharging any of the Notes, shall be 

and are hereby assigned, transferred and set over to the Paying Agent or other bank or trust company 

in trust for the respective Owners of the Notes, and such moneys shall be and are hereby irrevocably 

appropriated to the payment and discharge thereof.  All money and Defeasance Obligations 

deposited with the Paying Agent or such bank or trust company shall be deemed to be deposited in 

accordance with and subject to all of the provisions of this Note Resolution. 

 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

 Annual Audit.  Annually, promptly after the end of the Fiscal Year, the Issuer will 

cause an audit to be made of the financial statements of the Issuer for the preceding Fiscal Year by 

an Independent Accountant.  The audit report shall contain a statement regarding the Issuer's 

compliance with the arbitrage rebate covenants contained in Section 902 hereof.  Within 30 days 

after the completion of each such audit, a copy thereof shall be filed in the office of the Clerk, and 

a duplicate copy of the audit shall be mailed to the Purchaser.  Such audit shall at all times during 

the usual business hours be open to the examination and inspection by any taxpayer, any Owner of 

any of the Notes, or by anyone acting for or on behalf of such taxpayer or Owner.  Upon payment 

of the reasonable cost of preparing and mailing the same, a copy of any annual audit will, upon 

request, be sent to any Owner or prospective Owner.  As soon as possible after the completion of 

the annual audit, the governing body of the Issuer shall review such audit, and if the audit discloses 

that proper provision has not been made for all of the requirements of this Note Resolution, the 

Issuer shall promptly cure such deficiency. 

 

 Amendments.  The rights and duties of the Issuer and the Owners, and the terms 

and provisions of the Notes or of this Note Resolution, may be amended or modified at any time in 

any respect by resolution of the Issuer with the written consent of the Owners of not less than a 

majority in principal amount of the Notes then Outstanding, such consent to be evidenced by an 

instrument or instruments executed by such Owners and duly acknowledged or proved in the 

manner of a deed to be recorded, and such instrument or instruments shall be filed with the Clerk, 

but no such modification or alteration shall:  

 

 (a) Extend the maturity of any payment of principal or interest due upon any Note;  

 

 (b) effect a reduction in the amount which the Issuer is required to pay as principal of or interest 

on any Note;  

 

 (c) permit preference or priority of any Note over any other Note; or 

 

 (d) reduce the percentage in principal amount of Notes required for the written consent to any 

modification or alteration of the provisions of this Note Resolution.  

 

 Any provision of the Notes or of this Note Resolution may, however, be amended or modified by 

resolution duly adopted by the governing body of the Issuer at any time in any legal respect with the written 

consent of the Owners of all of the Notes at the time Outstanding.  

 

 Without notice to or the consent of any Owners, the Issuer may amend or supplement this Note 

Resolution for the purpose of curing any formal defect, omission, inconsistency or ambiguity herein, to 

grant to or confer upon the Owners any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

19 

be granted to or conferred upon the Owners, to more precisely identify the Improvements, to reallocate 

proceeds of the Notes among Improvements, to provide for Substitute Improvements, or in connection with 

any other change therein which is not materially adverse to the interests of the Owners. 

 

 Every amendment or modification of the provisions of the Notes or of this Note Resolution, to 

which the written consent of the Owners is given, as above provided, shall be expressed in a resolution 

adopted by the governing body of the Issuer amending or supplementing the provisions of this Note 

Resolution and shall be deemed to be a part of this Note Resolution.  A certified copy of every such 

amendatory or supplemental resolution, if any, and a certified copy of this Note Resolution shall always be 

kept on file in the office of the Clerk, and shall be made available for inspection by the Owner of any Note 

or a prospective purchaser or owner of any Note authorized by this Note Resolution, and upon payment of 

the reasonable cost of preparing the same, a certified copy of any such amendatory or supplemental 

resolution or of this Note Resolution will be sent by the Clerk to any such Owner or prospective Owner. 

 

 Any and all modifications made in the manner hereinabove provided shall not become effective 

until there has been filed with the Clerk a copy of the resolution of the Issuer hereinabove provided for, 

duly certified, as well as proof of any required consent to such modification by the Owners of the Notes 

then Outstanding.  It shall not be necessary to note on any of the Outstanding Notes any reference to such 

amendment or modification.  

 

 The Issuer shall furnish to the Paying Agent a copy of any amendment to the Notes or this Note 

Resolution which affects the duties or obligations of the Paying Agent under this Note Resolution. 

 

 Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by Owners.  Any notice, consent, 

request, direction, approval or other instrument to be signed and executed by the Owners may be 

in any number of concurrent writings of similar tenor and may be signed or executed by such 

Owners in person or by agent appointed in writing.  Proof of the execution of any such instrument 

or of the writing appointing any such agent and of the ownership of Notes, if made in the following 

manner, shall be sufficient for any of the purposes of this Note Resolution, and shall be conclusive 

in favor of the Issuer and the Paying Agent with regard to any action taken, suffered or omitted 

under any such instrument, namely: 

 

 (a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such instrument may be proved by 

a certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to take acknowledgments within such 

jurisdiction that the person signing such instrument acknowledged before such officer the execution thereof, 

or by affidavit of any witness to such execution. 

 

 (b) The fact of ownership of Notes, the amount or amounts, numbers and other identification 

of Notes, and the date of holding the same shall be proved by the Note Register. 

 

 In determining whether the Owners of the requisite principal amount of Notes Outstanding have 

given any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver under this Note Resolution, 

Notes owned by the Issuer shall be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding under this Note 

Resolution, except that, in determining whether the Owners shall be protected in relying upon any such 

request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver, only Notes which the Owners know to 

be so owned shall be so disregarded.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Notes so owned which have been 

pledged in good faith shall not be disregarded as aforesaid if the pledgee establishes to the satisfaction of 

the Owners the pledgee's right so to act with respect to such Notes and that the pledgee is not the Issuer. 

 

 Notices.  Any notice, request, complaint, demand or other communication required 

or desired to be given or filed under this Note Resolution shall be in writing, given to the Notice 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

20 

Representative at the Notice Address and shall be deemed duly given or filed if the same shall be:  (a) 

duly mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid; or (b) communicated via fax, with 

electronic or telephonic confirmation of receipt.  Copies of such notices shall also be given to the 

Paying Agent.  The Issuer, the Paying Agent and the Purchaser may from time to time designate, by 

notice given hereunder to the others of such parties, such other address to which subsequent notices, 

certificates or other communications shall be sent. 

 

 All notices given by:  (a) certified or registered mail as aforesaid shall be deemed duly given as of the 

date they are so mailed; (b) fax as aforesaid shall be deemed duly given as of the date of confirmation of 

receipt. If, because of the temporary or permanent suspension of regular mail service or for any other reason, 

it is impossible or impractical to mail any notice in the manner herein provided, then such other form of notice 

as shall be made with the approval of the Paying Agent shall constitute a sufficient notice. 

 

 Electronic Transactions.  The issuance of the Notes and the transactions related 

thereto and described herein may be conducted and documents may be stored by electronic means. 

 

 Further Authority.  The officers and officials of the Issuer, including the 

Chairman and Clerk, are hereby authorized and directed to execute all documents and take such 

actions as they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of 

this Note Resolution and to make ministerial alterations, changes or additions in the foregoing 

agreements, statements, instruments and other documents herein approved, authorized and 

confirmed which they may approve, and the execution or taking of such action shall be conclusive 

evidence of such necessity or advisability. 

 

 Severability.  If any section or other part of this Note Resolution, whether large or 

small, is for any reason held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect the validity of the other 

provisions of this Note Resolution. 

 

 Governing Law.  This Note Resolution shall be governed exclusively by and 

construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State. 

 

 Effective Date.  This Note Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from 

and after its adoption by the governing body of the Issuer. 

 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

(Signature Page to Note Resolution) 

 ADOPTED by the governing body of the Issuer on July 12, 2023. 

 

 

 

(SEAL)              

       Daniel Friesen, Chairman 

 

 

 

              

       Randy Parks, Commissioner 

 

 

 

              

       Ron Hirst, Commissioner  

 

 

 

              

       Don Bogner, Commissioner 

 

 

 

              

       John Whitesel, Commissioner  

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

       

Donna Patton, Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

 I hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Note Resolution of 

the Issuer adopted by the governing body on July 12, 2023, as the same appears of record in my office. 

 

 DATED:  July 12, 2023. 

 

 

 

              

       Donna Patton, Clerk 

 

 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

A-1 

 

EXHIBIT A 

(FORM OF NOTES) 

 

 

REGISTERED        REGISTERED 

NUMBER ____        $ 

 

 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF KANSAS 

RENO COUNTY 

TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION TEMPORARY NOTE 

SERIES 2023 

 

 

Interest  Maturity  Dated    CUSIP: 

Rate:   Date:   Date:  July 27, 2023 

 

 

REGISTERED OWNER: 

 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: 

 

 KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  That Reno County, State of Kansas (the 

“Issuer”), for value received, hereby acknowledges itself to be indebted and promises to pay to the 

Registered Owner shown above, or registered assigns, but solely from the source and in the manner herein 

specified, the Principal Amount shown above on the Maturity Date shown above, unless called for 

redemption prior to said Maturity Date, and to pay interest thereon at the Interest Rate per annum shown 

above (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months), from the Dated Date shown 

above, or from the most recent date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, payable at Maturity 

(the “Interest Payment Date”), or earlier redemption until the Principal Amount has been paid. 

 

 Method and Place of Payment.  The principal or redemption price of this Note shall be paid at 

maturity or upon earlier redemption to the person in whose name this Note is registered at the maturity or 

redemption date thereof, upon presentation and surrender of this Note at the principal office of the Treasurer 

of Reno County, Kansas (the “Paying Agent” and “Note Registrar”).  The interest payable on this Note on 

any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the person in whose name this Note is registered on the 

registration books maintained by the Note Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date(s) for such 

interest, which shall be the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month next preceding 

the Interest Payment Date.  Such interest shall be payable by check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to 

the address of such Registered Owner shown on the Note Register or at such other address as is furnished 

to the Paying Agent in writing by such Registered Owner.  The principal or redemption price of and interest 

on the Notes shall be payable in any coin or currency that, on the respective dates of payment thereof, is 

legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.  Interest not punctually paid will be paid in the 

manner established in the within defined Note Resolution. 

 

 Definitions.  Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the 

meanings assigned to such terms in the hereinafter defined Note Resolution. 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

A-2 

 ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS OF THIS NOTE ARE CONTINUED ON THE REVERSE 

HEREOF AND SHALL FOR ALL PURPOSES HAVE THE SAME EFFECT AS THOUGH FULLY 

SET FORTH AT THIS PLACE. 

 

 Authentication.  This Note shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled 

to any security or benefit under the hereinafter defined Note Resolution until the Certificate of 

Authentication and Registration hereon shall have been lawfully executed by the Note Registrar. 

 

 IT IS HEREBY DECLARED AND CERTIFIED that all acts, conditions, and things required to 

be done and to exist precedent to and in the issuance of this Note have been properly done and performed 

and do exist in due and regular form and manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of 

Kansas, and that the total indebtedness of the Issuer, including this series of notes, does not exceed any 

constitutional or statutory limitation. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Note to be executed by the manual or 

facsimile signature of its Chairman and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Clerk, and its 

seal to be affixed hereto or imprinted hereon. 

 

      RENO COUNTY, KANSAS 

 

 

(Facsimile Seal)    By:    (manual or facsimile)   

        Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:    (manual or facsimile)   

  Clerk 

 

 

 This Taxable General Obligation Temporary Note shall not be negotiable unless and until 

countersigned below following registration by the Clerk. 

 

 

(Facsimile Seal)       (manual or facsimile)   

         Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION AND REGISTRATION 

 

 This Note is one of a series of Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2023, of Reno 

County, Kansas, described in the within-mentioned Note Resolution. 

 

Registration Date:       

 

      Office of Reno County Treasurer, 

        Hutchinson, Kansas 

      as Note Registrar and Paying Agent 

 

 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

A-3 

      By       

 

Registration Number:       

 

 

(FORM OF REVERSE SIDE OF NOTE) 

 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

 

 Authorization of Notes.  This Note is one of an authorized series of Notes of the Issuer designated 

“Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2023,” aggregating the principal amount of 

$355,000 (the “Notes”) issued for the purposes set forth in the Resolution of the Issuer authorizing the 

issuance of the Notes (the “Note Resolution”).  The Notes are issued by the authority of and in full 

compliance with the provisions, restrictions and limitations of the Constitution and laws of the State of 

Kansas, including K.S.A. 10-123, K.S.A. 19-27a01 et seq., as amended by Charter Resolution No. XXVII, 

all as amended, and all other provisions of the laws of the State of Kansas applicable thereto.  

 

 General Obligations. The Notes constitute general obligations of the Issuer payable as to both 

principal and interest from charges imposed by the governing body of the Issuer within Sewer District Nos. 

201 (Yoder) and 202 (H.A.B.I.T.), Reno County, Kansas (the “Districts”) for the use of sewer improvements, 

or from general obligation bonds of the Issuer or loan proceeds, and if not so paid, from ad valorem taxes 

which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible property, real and 

personal, within the territorial limits of the Issuer.  The full faith, credit and resources of the Issuer are hereby 

pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Note and the issue of which it is a part as 

the same respectively become due. 

 

 Redemption Prior to Maturity.  The Notes are subject to redemption prior to maturity as set forth 

in the Note Resolution. 

 

 Transfer and Exchange.  This Note may be transferred or exchanged, as provided in the Note 

Resolution, only on the Note Register kept for that purpose at the principal office of the Note Registrar, 

upon surrender of this Note together with a written instrument of transfer or authorization for exchange 

satisfactory to the Note Registrar duly executed by the Registered Owner or the Registered Owner's duly 

authorized agent, and thereupon a new Note or Notes in any Authorized Denomination of the same maturity 

and in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided 

in the Note Resolution and upon payment of the charges therein prescribed.  A Registered Owner shall only 

have the authority to transfer and exchange Notes in an aggregate principal amount of $100,000 or more 

unless such transfer and exchange is made through a primary offering (as defined in the SEC Rule).  The 

Issuer shall pay all costs incurred in connection with the issuance, payment and initial registration of the 

Notes and the cost of a reasonable supply of note blanks.  The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and 

treat the person in whose name this Note is registered on the Note Register as the absolute owner hereof for 

the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and interest 

due hereon and for all other purposes.  The Notes are issued in fully registered form in Authorized 

Denominations. 

 

 

LEGAL OPINION 

 

 The following is a true and correct copy of the approving legal opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., 

Bond Counsel, which was dated and issued as of the date of original issuance and delivery of such Notes: 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

A-4 

 

 

 

GILMORE & BELL, P.C. 

Attorneys at Law 

100 N. Main            Suite 800 

Wichita, Kansas  67202 

 

 

 

(PRINTED LEGAL OPINION) 

 

 

NOTE ASSIGNMENT 
 

 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned do(es) hereby sell, assign and transfer to 

 

__________________________________________________________ 

(Name and Address) 

 

__________________________________________________________ 

(Social Security or Taxpayer Identification No.) 

 

the Note to which this assignment is affixed in the outstanding principal amount of $___________, standing 

in the name of the undersigned on the books of the Note Registrar.  The undersigned do(es) hereby 

irrevocably constitute and appoint ____________________ as agent to transfer said Note on the books of 

said Note Registrar with full power of substitution in the premises.   

 

Dated              

      Name 

 

             

      Social Security or 

      Taxpayer Identification No. 

 

             

      Signature (Sign here exactly as name(s) 

      appear on the face of Certificate) 

 

      Signature guarantee: 

 

 

      By        

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK 

 

STATE OF KANSAS  ) 

    )  SS. 

COUNTY OF RENO  ) 



 

6000868.20109\BASICDOCS 

A-5 

 

 The undersigned, Clerk of Reno County, Kansas, does hereby certify that the within Note has been 

duly registered in my office according to law as of July 27, 2023. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 

(Facsimile Seal)        (facsimile)    

         Clerk 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF STATE TREASURER 

 

OFFICE OF THE TREASURER, STATE OF KANSAS 

 

 STEVEN JOHNSON, Treasurer of the State of Kansas, does hereby certify that a transcript of the 

proceedings leading up to the issuance of this Note has been filed in the office of the State Treasurer, and 

that this Note was registered in such office according to law on      . 

 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 

(Facsimile Seal)      By:    (facsimile)    

        Treasurer of the State of Kansas 

 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #8.E

AGENDA DATE: July 12, 2023

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Sign the RNR Intent to Not Exceed RNR; and set a budget hearing date of August 9, 2023 for the FY24
Reno County Budget.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
At the last commission meeting, it was determined the commission wants a budget at or below the
Revenue Neutral Rate (RNR).  The commission made multi-million dollar cuts to come in at the RNR. 
The attached summary shows the mill levy for each fund that will add up to the RNR.  Since the
commission is not exceeding the RNR, the timeline of budget hearings and adoption moves up to the
month August. 
 
Today, it is recommended the attached summary be approved for the maximum budget that will be
published in the Hutchinson News prior to the public hearing that will take place on August 9, 2023.

ALL OPTIONS:
1. Sign the RNR intent to Not Exceed RNR for FY24; and set a budget hearing date of August 9,

2023.
2. Sign the RNR intent to Not Exceed RNR for FY24; but not set the budget hearing and maximum

budget until the July 26, 2023 meeting.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Sign the RNR intent to Not Exceed RNR for FY24; and set a budget hearing date of August 9, 2023.



NOTICE OF REVENUE NEUTRAL RATE INTENT 

 

The Reno County Board of Commissioners hereby notifies the Reno County Clerk of Intent to 

exceed the Revenue Neutral Rate; 

 

 

   Yes, we intend to exceed the Revenue Neutral Rate and our proposed mill levy rate is

 .  The date of our hearing is   at the regularly scheduled commission meeting 

which will begin at   and will be held at    in Hutchinson, Kansas. 

 

 

 XXXX No, we do not plan to exceed the Revenue Neutral Rate and will submit our budget to the 

Reno County Clerk on or before August 25, 2023. 

 

WITNESS our signatures and official seal on     . 

 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

OF RENO COUNTY, KANSAS 

 

 

       

Daniel Friesen, Chairman 

 

 

       

Randy Parks, Member 

 

 

       

Ron Hirst, Member 

 

 

       

Don Bogner, Member 

 

ATTEST: 

       

John Whitesel, Member 

 

 

      

Donna Patton, Reno County Clerk 



State of Kansas-County

Reno County 2024

     FUND

General 21,136,992 15.027 22,466,457 17.993 28,025,447 8,660,133 12.125
Bond & Interest 1,695,363 1.624 1,749,701 1.259 1,962,188 1,417,083 1.984
Road & Bridge 6,669,330 6.164 7,175,225 7.253 7,664,795 5,261,376 7.366
Special Road 335,305 0.140 400,000   823,722     
Special Bridge 2,418,507 1.791 2,750,000 0.241 2,500,000 1,280,243 1.792
Aging & Transit 1,988,889 0.418 2,503,058 0.267 2,540,902 310,709 0.435
Public Health 3,289,479 1.362 3,523,395 0.874 3,498,353 545,920 0.764
Noxious Weed 146,757 0.173 151,021 0.174 155,400 125,645 0.176
Employee Benefits 8,356,794 9.804 8,909,321 7.193 10,378,374 5,876,736 8.228
TECH Center 510,000 0.712 510,000 0.678 400,000 349,547 0.489
Mental  Health 452,025 0.633 452,025 0.602 400,000 356,947 0.500
Historical Museum 185,000 0.260 185,000 0.246 185,000 168,414 0.236
CIP Fund 761,748 0.847 457,000 0.300 665,000 506,596 0.709
Special Equipment 440,088 0.543 718,009 0.728 1,033,776 685,579 0.960
Solid Waste 7,256,179 6,211,238 9,701,336
Youth Services 1,914,366 2,050,036 2,401,855
Solid Waste Post-Closure 206,384 330,000 7,389,613
Special Parks & Recreation 13,165 10,000 41,537
Special Alcohol & Drug 10,000 10,000 66,489
Noxious Weed Capital Outlay     124,276
Public Health Capital Outlay 66,946 25,000 388,201
Internal Services 646,744 590,846 698,987
Municipalities Fight Addiction     340,952
Non-Budgeted Funds-A 2,286,054
Non-Budgeted Funds-B 876,063
Non-Budgeted Funds-C 6,739,943
Non-Budgeted Funds-D 11,471,037
Totals 79,873,158 39.498 61,177,332 37.808 81,386,203 25,544,928 35.764

35.764
Less: Transfers 10,114,066 6,759,031 7,257,405
Net Expenditure 69,759,092 54,418,301 74,128,798
Total Tax Levied 25,309,526 25,549,031 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
Assessed Valuation 640,606,568 675,742,359 714,263,783

Outstanding Indebtedness,
  January 1, 2021 2022 2023
G.O. Bonds 4,875,000 16,315,000 14,955,000
Revenue Bonds 0 0 0
Other 6,279,225 0 0
Lease Pur. Princ. 566,286 127,856 21,797
     Total 11,720,511 16,442,856 14,976,797

  *Tax rates are expressed in mills
**Revenue Neutral Rate as defined by KSA 79-2988

Page No. 1b

Expenditures  Expenditures
Actual Tax 

Rate*
Budget Authority 
for Expenditures

Amount of 2023       
Ad Valorem Tax

Actual Tax 
Rate*

NOTICE OF HEARING TO EXCEED REVENUE NEUTRAL RATE AND BUDGET HEARING

The governing body of Reno County

Veterans Room, 206 W. 1st., Hutchinson, KS, for the purpose of hearing and
answering objections of taxpayers relating to the proposed use of all funds and the amount of ad valorem tax and Revenue Neutral Rate.

will meet on September 13 ,2023 during their regularly scheduled meeting which begins at 9:00 a.m. in the Reno County Courthouse

County Clerk

Detailed budget information is available at the Reno County Clerk's Office and will be available at this hearing.

Donna Patton

BUDGET SUMMARY
Proposed Budget 2024 Expenditures and Amount of 2023 Ad Valorem Tax establish the maximum limits of the 2024 budget.

Estimated Tax Rate is subject to change depending on the final assessed valuation.

Prior Year Actual for 2022 Current Year Estimate for 2023 Proposed Budget Year for 2024

Revenue Neutral Rate **

Proposed 
Estimated 
Tax Rate*



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #9.A

AGENDA DATE: July 12, 2023

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Monthly Department Reports

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Every month, departments have been asked to provide an update on the previous month's major
activities.  The reports are intended to keep the county commission informed about the appointed and
elected departments.  Attached are reports for Aging-Public Transit, Appraiser, Automotive, Clerk,
Community Corrections, Communications, and District Attorney.



  

 120 W. Avenue B, Hutchinson, KS 67501 

(620)694-2911         Fax: (620)694-2767 

 
 

Monthly Report for June 2023 
Submitted by 

Barbara Lilyhorn 
Director- Department of Aging and Public Transportation 

 
Rcat Staff 

Rcat has 1 driver position open which is currently being  advertised.  We have one offer of employment that is 

pending the outcome of pre-employment testing.   

Budget 

 Aging Services has spent 30% and Public Transit has spent 29% of the Department budgets respectively – a 

composite total of 29% of the entire 002 expenditure budget as of 06/23/2023. Composite revenue is 22 %.  

Public Transportation Operations 

The bus vendor, Midwest Transit, informed me, one of the buses ordered in July 2021 has been manufactured 

and is going through final processing by the company. It should be delivered sometime this summer.  

According to Diamond Coach, the builds on the other 5 buses, ordered in May will begin early next year. 

KDOT is considering approval for the fabrication of two battery box doors by a local company.  Rcat has been 

waiting for communication from the company that bought out the original vehicle manufacturer for 19 

months without success. Normally, all repairs are done with OEM parts. 

 

Aging Operations 

The application and distribution of the Senior Farmer’s Market Nutrition Program coupon booklets began on 
June 14th.  Reno County was allocated 275 booklets, each with a $50 value. Application for all 275 was made 
as of June 23rd. This is a first come first served program originating from USDA and funneled to KDHE, the 
Kansas Department of Aging and Disability, and the South-Central Kansas Area Agency. To enable fair and 
equitable participation across the county, applications are taken by phone through Department of Aging staff.  
The completed applications as well as the coupon booklets are mailed to individuals.   Recipients can “spend” 
the coupons for fresh fruits and vegetables at farmers markets across Kansas from participating local farmers. 
This program brings $13,750 new dollars to Reno county’s economy. 

The Department of Aging has accepted the resignation, due to the retirement, of  John Eberly; Social and 

Human Service Assistant effective June 23.    

 

 

 



 

 
  RENO COUNTY 

   125 West First Ave.                                                                       
Hutchinson, Kansas 67501 

    (620) 694-2915 
Fax: (620) 694-2987 

 
 

 
Re: Monthly report for end of June 2023 

 

To: Randy Partington, County Administrator 

 

Staffing changes or issues  

The Appraiser’s Office will post for a Residential Appraiser sometime in the next couple of weeks.  

 

Financial summary 

As of 6/30/23, the Appraiser will have spent approximately 47% of the year-to-date budget, with the majority of 

it being payroll. The remaining expenses were primarily regular or seasonal/monthly expenses.  

 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

Residential/Commercial Department 

• Staff has begun field work (sales review, permits, 17% review) for the 2024 valuation.  

• Staff is defending appealed informal valuation decisions at small claims and BOTA. 

Personal Property 

• Staff is inputting cost values for various personal property items for the 2024 valuation. 

Support Staff 

• Staff continues to process deeds and update records accordingly. 

• Staff continues to work with IT regarding the GlobalSearch (Square9) transition. 

• Staff is working Splits/Combos as they come in. 



  
120 W. Avenue B, Hutchinson, KS 67501 

620-694-2585 
Fax: 620-694-2767 

 
 
 
 

Automotive 

Budget YTD Summary 

As of June 23, 2023, we are at 44% of our overall budget of $200,483. The internal services fund (fuel 

and parts) stands at 35% out of the budget of $330,846. In the special equipment fund for vehicles, we 

are at 12% out of the overall budget of $236,250. 

 

Projects/Issues 

For the most part it has been routine maintenance and repair. We are also dealing with warranty repair 

on a couple of our hybrid patrol vehicles. Ron Brubaker has been working with the Ford techs and 

regional reps to resolve problems with the hybrid battery overheating but, so far, a solution has not 

been found. 

We are still waiting for the manufacturer order banks to open to see where pricing will come in for 

replacement patrol vehicles. 

We will be scheduling another Purple Wave auction to dispose of a couple more surplus vehicles. 

May fuel expenses came in at $18,650.36. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
RENO COUNTY 

125 West 1st Ave. 
                                                                       Hutchinson, Kansas 67501 

                                  (620) 694-2934 
      Donna Patton                                                                      Fax: (620) 694-2534 
      County Clerk                                       TDD: Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777 
 

 
 

 
 

Clerk/Election Monthly Report for June 

 

In the Election’s Office we are preparing for the USD 310 Primary Election on August 1st. We 

have our equipment tested and ready to go. We will start Advanced Voting in the Conference 

Room on July 24th.  

 

In the Clerk’s Office we have sent out all the Estimated Budget Estimates and waiting on 

taxing entities to let me know if they will exceed their RNR. We  have to be notified by July 

20th so on July 21st I will get the mailers prepared and send to the printers.  

 

By the end of June, 43% of the year-to-date budget has been used in the Clerk’s Office with 

the majority of that for payroll and 45% in the Election’s Office has been used, with the 

majority of that for payroll and software maintenance.  

 

Donna Patton 

 

 

 



 

 

County Commission Report              June 2023 

 

Staffing 

There are currently no open positions at Community Corrections.   

 

Projects/Concerns 

Staff from Horizons Mental Health Center met with officers to provide them information about the 

Carrefour Crisis Center.  The crisis center is an alternative placement for people suffering from a mental 

health crisis.  A person does not have to meet the high criteria for hospitalization, but can spend 

multiple days and nights at the center receiving assistance with stabilization.  This information on the 

crisis center helps officers know who is appropriate for the program and how to help a client get 

admitted.  At times the crisis center can serve as an alternative to incarceration when a person is in need 

of mental health stabilization.  The crisis center can provide more services to assist with stabilization 

than the County jail so it is more effective in achieving our goal. 

 

We are working to schedule a meeting with the Hutchinson Police Department and Horizons Mental 

Health Center Co-Responder Program staff to talk to officers about their program.  More and more we 

are seeing the Courts assign people to Community Corrections who are diagnosed as severely and 

persistently mentally ill.  This diverts the person from incarceration but creates a unique challenge for 

officers. 

 

Community Corrections has three supervisory staff attending the High-Performance Organization 

training in June.  This training will help them as they work with others who have completed the training 

to find ways to improve the effectiveness of the agency.  The Community Corrections high performance 

organization group has focused on improving the skills of officers, overall efficiencies, and ways to 

improve administrative functions.  The addition of more trained staff will help this work progress. 

 

Financial 

June finishes the State fiscal year.  Year-end budget adjustments will be approved in July by the advisory 

boards and then presented to the Commissioners for approval.   

 



 
 
 

 
Communications Monthly Report - May 18 to June 30, 2023 
 
Press Releases: Residential fee change at Reno County Landfill, Water Districts Consumer Confidence Reports, 
Childcare Orientation Class, Changes to Fireworks Resolution, High nitrate levels in Yoder, Free Mosquito Dunks 
at Health Department, Health Alert – Kratom deaths in Reno County, Fireworks Resolution passed by Reno 
County Commission/Fireworks safe disposal encouraged. 
Graphic Design: Job-recruiting graphics for Youth Services, Health Dept., and one for all dept. job openings at 
Reno County, Safe Fireworks Disposal, Free Mosquito Dunks at Health Dept., QR code for Sheriff’s Office, the 
rest of a series of 10 graphics as part of the Health Dept.’s Preparedness #KSPrepared campaign. 
Website: Joint session with Reno County Commission and Hutchinson City Council, Low-income Kansas seniors 
encouraged to apply for coupons used at Farmers Markets, KDOT closing the bridge on Pennington Road 
because of a lower load rating, Memorial Day closing, Residential customers will not pay construction 
demolition tipping fee starting June 1, Take a look at the history of the Reno County Health Department, 
Commission approves Request for Proposals for Landfill Methane Program, Reno County Appreciation Picnic, 
Childcare Orientation Class is July 6th, Ribbon cutting held for new 15-mile section of K-14 highway, John Eberly 
retires after 11 years as Social and Human Service Assistant in the Aging Department, Smallville’s votes were 
tabulated for your favorite Super Hero during Third Thursday, Hutchinson’s Fire Station #1 is now in service, 
Health Alert - Kratom deaths, Free Mosquito Dunks available at the Health Department, Fireworks Resolution 
passed by Commission, Safe Fireworks Disposal and opening on the Juvenile Corrections Advisory Board – 
Education Representative. 
Videos/Photos: Videos: Sheriff’s Office Torch Run and Polar Plunge, Reno County Sheriff’s Office Active 
Shooter Training, courthouse renovations. Photos: County Commission Meeting 06-27-23, HPO Training at HCC, 
Mosquito dunks, Rcat group photo with new bus, Reno County’s departments at Smallville’s Third Thursday, Fire 
Station #1 Open House, Ribbon Cutting held for new 15- mile section of K-14 Highway, County Commission 
Meeting 06-13-23 with John Eberly’s retirement award, Fairfield students touring the Courthouse, Car Seat 
Check at the Health Department, Reno County Employee Appreciation Picnic, Sheriff’s Office Active Shooter 
Training, County Commission Meeting 05-30-23, Reno County Canvass, County Commission Meeting 05-23-23, 
Joint meeting with Hutchison City Council, Torch Run and Polar Plunge Splash by Sheriff’s Office and ongoing 
renovation photos.  
Social Media: May 18 to June 30, 2023 

• Facebook Reno County:  3,798 followers (+46), 48 posts  
o Top Post: New Fire Station opening (06.16.23) 

 3,607 reach, 1,309 engagements, 6 shares, 131 reactions, 2 comments 
• Twitter: 868 followers (+3), 49 tweets 

o Top Tweet: New Fire Station opening (06.16.23) 
 124 impressions, 13 total media engagements 

• YouTube: 339 subscribers (+10)  
o Top video: Reno County Commission meeting (06.27.23) 

 94 views 
• LinkedIn: 106 followers (+2), 1 new post 
• Instagram: 19 followers (+1), 34 posts.        

 
Committee Meetings: Other: Attended Emergenetics event and High(er) Performance Training at HCC, gave 
presentation to Fairfield students who toured the Reno County Courthouse.  

Administration 
206 West First Ave. 

Hutchinson, KS 67501-5245 
620-694-2929 






	Board of County Commissioners Agenda
	03A RenoCountyFairInvite
	06B KDOT_Spec_Maint_Agree
	06C PZ2023-03_CUP
	06D PW_SurplusProperty
	07A ExecSession
	08A ConservationDistrictFY24Funding
	08B Special Districts FY24 Budget
	08C FY22 Audit Report Presentation
	08D Resolutions_SDs201_202TempNote
	08E County_Budget RNRIntent_SetBudgetHearing
	09A DeptMonthlyReports

